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FINANCIAL REPQRT

Management report

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB} and South Africa (JSE: ANH} stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the original social network, has been bringing people together
for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using the finest
natural ingredients. Cur diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Steila Artois®; multi-
country brands Beck's®, Hoegaarden®, Leffe® and Michelob Ultra®; and local champions such as Aguila®, Antarctica®, Bud Light®,
Brahma®, Cass®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Espetial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and Skol®. Our
brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European roots at the Den Hoorn brewery
in Leuven, Belgium. To the picneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in 5t. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 170 000 employees based in nearly 50 countries
worldwide. For 2019, our reported revenue was 52.3 billion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and associates).

The following management report should be read in conjunction with our audited consclidated financial statements.
In the rest of this document we refer to Anheuser-Busch InBev as "AB InBev”, “the company”, “we”, “us” or "our”.

Recent events

On 18 July 2019, we announced the agreement to divest Carlton & United Breweries (“CUB” or “Australian operations”), our Australian
subsidiary, to Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd. ("Asahi”) for a transaction value of 16 billion AUD on a cash free/debt free basis. As part of this
transaction, we will grant Asahi rights to commercialize the portfolio of AB InBev's global and international brands in Australia. The results of
ihe Australian operations will be presented as part of "Results from discontinued operations™ until the completion of the disposal.

On 30 September 2019, we successfully completed the listing of a minority stake of our Asia Pacific subsidiary, Budweiser Brewing Company
APAC Limited (Budweiser APAC), on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for 5 750m US dollar (including the over-aliotment option). By doing
so, we created a superior regional champion in the consumer goods space, positioned to expand across the fastest growing markets in the
Asia Pacific region with best-in-class talent and an unmatched portfoiio of local, international and globa) brands. We also believe a local listing
of Budweiser APAC provides an attractive platform for potential M&A in the region. Following the full exercise of the over-allotment option on
3 October 2019, we control 87.22% of the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. We used the net IPQ proceeds to redeem the outstanding
principal amount of certain notes.

Selected financial figures

To facilitate the understanding of our underlying performance, the comments in this management report, unless otherwise indicated, are based
on organic and nomalized numbers. “Organic” means the financials are analyzed eliminating the impact of changes in currencies on
translation of foreign cperations, and scopes. Scopes represent the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, the start-up or termination of
activities of the transfer of activities between segments, curtailment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in accounting estimates
and other assumptions that management does not consider part of the underlying performance of the business.

We have restated our 2018 results considering (i) the new company organizational structure effective 1 January 2019, (ii) the adoption of new
IFRS rules on lease accounting (IFRS 16 Leases) under the full retrospective approach on 1 January 2019 and (iii) the classification of our
Austraiian business as discontinued operations, as detailed below:

* [Effective 1 January 2019, we recrganized our regional reporting structure. Qur results are now reported under the following five regions:
North America, Middie Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific. We continue to separately report the results of Global Export
and Holding Companies, which includes our global headquarters and the export businesses which have not been allocated to the
regions. The key changes in the company’s structure are as follows: {i) the new Middle Americas region combined the tormer Latin
America West region with the Dominican Republic, Panama, Costa Rica, Guatemala and the Caribbean, which were previously reporied
in Latin America Norih region and (i) the new South America region combined the former Latin America South region with Brazit, which
was previously reported in Latin America North region. Our five geographic regions plus our Global Export and Holding Companies
comprise our six segments for all financial reparting purposes.

*  Effective 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 Leases replaced the previous lease accounting requirements and introduced significant changes to
lessee accounting. it requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at lease commencement date, together with
a different recognition of lease costs. We have chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, consequently, we have restated
the financial information for 2018.

* Effective 30 September 2019, following the announcement on 19 July 2019 of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, we classified the
assets and lighilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale and liahilities associated with assets heid far sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. In addition, since the results of the Australian
operations represent a separate major line of business, these are now accounted for as discontinued operations as required by IFRS 5
and presented in a separate line in the consolidated income statement (“profit from discontinued operations”). Consequently, the 2018
consolidated results have been restated as if the classification had been applied as of 1 January 2018 to exclude the results of the
Australian operations.

Accordingly, the profit, cash flow and balance sheet are presented as reported in 2018, adjusted to reflect (i) the new company organizational
structure, (i} the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective application and (jii) the classification of Carlton & United Breweries
as discontinued operations. This presentation is referred to as 2018 restated”. As a result, all the presentations of our underlying performance
and organic growth figures do not reflect the results of the Australian operations.

The tables in this management report provide the segmaent information per regian for the period ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in the
format up to Normalized EBIT level that is used by management to monitor perfermance.

Whenever used in this report, the term “normalized” refers o performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before
non-recurring items and discontinued operations, Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do hot occur regularly as part of
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the normal activities of the company. They are presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying
sustainable performance of the company due to their size or nature. Normalized measures are additional measures used by management
and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the company’s performance, but rather shouid
be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS measures.

The tables below set out the components of our operating income and operating expenses, as well as the key cash flow figures.

2018

Million US doilar 2019 Y restated %
Revenuef 52 329 100% 53 041 100%
Cost of sales (20 362) 39% (19 233) 38%
Gross profit 31 967 61% 33108 62%
SGEA (16 421) 31% (16 807) 32%
Other operating income/(expenses) 875 2% 805 2%
Normalized profit from eperations (Normalized EBIT) 16 421 31% 17 107 32%
Nen-recurring items (323) 1% {692) 1%
Profit from operations (EBIT} 16 098 31% 16 414 31%
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 4 657 9% 4 624 9%
Normalized EBITDA 21078 40% 21732 41%
EBITDA 20755 40% 21038 40%
Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8 086 15% 6248 13%
Profit from continuing operations attributable 5, 5
to equity holders of AB InBev 8743 17% 3839 7%
Profit from discontinued operations attributable o 5
to equity holders of AB inBev 424 1% 531 1%
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 911 18% 4 370 8%

2018
Miltion US doliar 2019 restated
Operating activities
Profit from continuing operations 9990 5157
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 11029 16 070
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 21019 21 227
Change in working capital ()] a77
Pension contributions and use of provisions (715} (487)
Interest and taxes (paidYreceived (7 063) (7177
Dividends received 160 141
Cash flow from operating activities 13 396 14181
investing activities
Net capex {4 854) {4 568)
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (252) 173
Proceeds from the sale/{acquisition) of investment in short-term debt securities (€)] 1296
Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures - (430)
Qther 42 (328)
Cash flow from investing activities (5073) (3 857)
Financing activities
Dividends paid {5 015) {7 761}
Net (payments on)¥proceeds from borrowings (8 008) {4 707)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 5 575 -
Payment of lease liabilities (441} (423)
Qther (including purchase of non-controlling interests} (623) (1 436)
Cash flow from financing activities {8 512) (14 327)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations {189} {4 003}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on discontinued operations 539 755

! Turnover less excise taxes. in many jurisdictions, excise taxes make up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to the company's customers
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Financial performance

The tabies in this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in the
format down to Normalized EBIT level that js used by management to monitor performance. To facilitate the understanding of our underlying
performance, we are presenting in this management report the 2018 restated consolidated volumes and results up to Normalized EBIT. As
such, these financials are included in the organic growth calculation. The profit, cash flow and balance sheet are presented as reporied in
2018, adjusted to reflect (i) the new company organizational structure effective 1 January 2019, (ii) the adoption of new IFRS rules on lease
accounting (IFRS 16 Leases) under the full retrospective approach on 1 January 2019 and (iii} the classification of our Australian business as
discaontinued operations.

We are presenting our results under five regions: North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific

The tables below provide a summary of cur performance far the peried ended 31 Decembar 2019 and 2018 (in million LS dollar, except
volumes in thousand hecloliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

2018 Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE restated : translation growth growth %
Volumes 559 819 (4 601) - 6 209 561 427 1.1%
Revenue 53 041 (316) (2 664) 2 268 52 329 4.3%
Cost of sales (19 933) 14 1030 (1474) (20 362) (7.4)%
Gross profit 33108 {302) {1 634) 794 31 967 2.8%
SG&A (16 807) 157 829 (589) (16 421} (3.6)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 805 ] 37 100 875 12.2%
Normalized EBIT 17 107 (137} (843) 295 16 421 1.7%
Normalized EBITDA 21732 (109} (1123) 578 21078 2.7%
Normalized EBITDA margir 41.0% 40.3% {65) bps

In 2019, we delivered normalized EBITDA growth of 2.7%, while our normalized EBITDA margin decreased 65 bps, reaching 40.3%.
Consolidated volumes grew 1.1%, with own beer volumes growing 0.8% and non-beer volumes increasing 4.8%.

Consalidated revenue grew 4 3% to 52 329m US dollar, with revenue per hectoliter increasing 3.1%. Combined revenues of our three glabal
brands, Budweiser, Stella Artois and Corona grew 5.2% and 8.0% outside of their respective home markets.

Consolidated Cost of Sales (CoS) increased 7.4%, or 5.8% on a per hectoliter basis.

VOLUMES

The table below summarizes the volume evolution per region and the related comments are based on organic numbers. Volumes include not
only brands that we own or iicense, but also third-party brands that we brew as a subcontractor and third-party products that we sell through
our distribution network, particuiarly in Europe. Volumes sold by the Global Export business, which includes our globai headquarters and the
export businesses which have not been allocated to our regions, are shown separately.

2018 Organic Organic
Thousand hectoliters restated : growth %
North America 110726 50 (2 643) 108 133 (2.4)%
Middte Americas 128 803 (153) 4 888 133 538 3.8%
South America 135618 188 3858 139 664 2.8%
EMEA 87135 (4 071) 2825 85 888 3.4%
Asia Pacific 96 116 (134) (2 814) 93 168 (2.8Y%
Global Export and Holding Companies 1422 (481) 95 1036 10.1%
AB IinBev Worldwide 559 819 (4 601) 6 209 561 427 1.1%

North America total volumes decreased 2.4%. In the United States, we continued to focus on our commercial strategy, putting consumers
first and rebatancing our portfolio through innovation and premiumization. We estimate that the United States industry beer sales-to-retailers
declined by 1.4% in 2019. Our own sales-lo-retailers were down by 2.4% in 2019, while our sales-to-wholesalers were down by 2.3%. Our
total market share declined an estimated 50 bps in 2019, predominantly driven by mix due to the growth of hard seltzer within the flavored
malt beverage category. in which we currently under-index. The hard seltzer segment is drawing new consumers to the malt beverage category
and we are increasing investment behind our brands to accelerate our growth in the segment. Bon Viv and Natural Light Seltzer are growing
at a strong rate. We are confident that we can leverage our strang portfolio, coupled with our best-in-class brewing capabilities and distribution
network, to accelerate our momentum in this fast-growing segment. In 2019, our market share excluding the flavored malt beverage category
declined by 10 bps, an improvement in trend of 20 bps from 2018. Our above core portfolio gained 90 bps of total share in 2019, due to strong
performances from Michelob Ultra, Michelob Ultra Pure Gold, our craft portfoiio and our innovation pipeline. Michelob Ultra continues to grow
by double-digits and is now the second largest brand in the country by retail sales, according to IRI. Michelob Ultra Pure Gold grew by triple-
digits in 2018, while our craft porifolio grew by more than 20%, gaining share within the craft segmemt according to IRI. We estimate our
innovations contributed approximately half of the total innovation valume in the industry once again this year, led by Naturdays, Michelob Ultra
Infusions and Natural Light Seltzer. Our mainstream brands lost an estimated 140 bps of market share in 2018, as consumers continue to
trade-up 1o higher price tiers. Within the mainstream segment, our market share deciined by 15 bps in 2018, which compares to a 35 bps
decline in 2018, a trend improvement of 20 bps. Share declines of Bud Light and Budweiser were partially offset by share gains of our value
portfalio, led by the Natural Light family (excluding Natural Light Seltzer, which is not included in the mainstream segment).
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In Canada, our volumes declined primarily due to @ weak beer industry. Our High End Company continues to gain share of the premium
segment, led by share gains from our premium import brands, including Corona and Hoegaarden, and strong volume growth from our craft
portfolio. In the core segment, Bud Light grew share for the 24th consecutive year in 20189, and in the core plus segment, Michelob Ultra
continued to be the fastest growing beer brand in the country.

Middle Americas total volumes increased 3.8%. In Mexico, we grew volumes by mid-single digit, ahead of the industry, resulting in continued
market share gains. We delivered growth across our brand portfolio, with a particularly strong performance in the above core segment. We
remain focused on developing our portfolio in line with the category expansion framework to cleady differentiate our brands. Our core brands
continue to grow supported by a strong innovation pipeline, consistent brand messaging and entrance into new occasions. Qur premium
portfolio also contributed meaningfully to top-line growth, with double-digit volume growth of the Modelo family, Michelob Ultra, Stelia Artois
and our local craft brand, Cucapa. In early 2019, we signed a contract with OXXO, the largest c-store chain in Mexico, to begin selling our
pertfolio of beers in their 17 000+ stores in order to reach more consumers in more ocgasions. We expanded in the regions of Guadalajara
and Mexico City in 2018, with our portfolio quickly reaching fair share in the 4 000+ stores in which we are now present. While the majority of
our growth was driven by existing channels, our entrance into OXXO also made a meaningful contribution.

In Colombia, we had a very strong year with a healthy balance between volume and revenue per hectoliter growth, even in the context of a
moere competitive environment. In 2019, our total volumes grew by mid-single digits, with consistent growth in both our beer and non-beer
portfolios, leading to our highest annual volume growth in Colombia since the SAB combination. We continue to successfully expand the
premium segment, led by our global brand portfolio, which grew by more than 50% in 2019. At the other end of the price spectrum, we are
bringing new consumers into the category through smart affordability initiatives, such as the expansion of our 1-liter returnable glass bottle
sharing pack. Our local core portfolio delivered consistently strong results throughout the year, led by Aguila, which grew by double-digits and
ended the year with a powerful carnpaign focused on responsible drinking. Qur non-beer portfolic delivered mid-single digit volume growth for
2019, led by the expansion of Malta Leona and the launch of our new purpose-driven water brand, Zalva, from which the profits will contribute
to the recovery of Colombian wetlands.

In Pery, our volumes declined by low single digits. In light of the challenging consumer envircnment, we launched a new brand called Golden,
as part of our afforcability strategy. Golden is brewed using ingredients with strong cultural reievance to strengthen our ties to local farming
and is off to a very strong start. In Ecuador, our volumes declined by low single digits. While our global brands continued to perform well with
double-digit volume growth, a softer consumer environment impacted the beer category throughout the year. In response, we are enhancing
our core offerings across a variety of price points to ensure consumers have accessible options within the beer category.

South America total volumes increased 2.8%. In Brazil, our total voiumes grew by 5.0%. Qur beer volumes grew by 3.0% while our non-beer
volumes grew by 11.2%. According to Nielsen, the beer industry grew by 2.4% and the non-beer industry grew by 2.7%. We continue to utilize
a porifolio approach to win in the premium category as we can reach more consumers on more occasions through our complementary brand
portfolio. In 2018, our premium portfolio grew by double-digits, led by our global brands and local premium offerings, such as Original and our
craft brands. Qur global brand portfolio grew by double-digits off a meaningful base, with strong perfermances from all three brands. Beck'’s,
our premium German pure malt brand, was also recently added to our portfolio. It is off to a very strong start in the regions where it has been
launched. In the core plus segment, Bohemia is acceierating its mormentum, delivering four consecutive quarters of triple-digit growth. Our
Skol Puro Malte innovation, which was rolled out naticnally in the second quarter of 2019, continues to grow at rapid pace, enabling the Skol
family volumes to stabilize in the full year. Our smart affordability strategy continues to gain traction, with our regional brands Nossa, Magnifica
and Legitima performing very well. Each has delivered meaningful share gains in the states in which it was lauched, and Magnifica is now the
leading brand in the value segment in the state of Maranhao. These brands, offered at an accessible price point and brewed with local crops,
deliver incremental volume and profitability by increasing our presence in relevant states.

In Argentina, volumes declined by mid-single digits in 2019, as we faced consumgption contraction resulting from ongoing challenging
macroeconomic conditions. Our premium brands performed well and gained share within the segment, led by our global brands and our local
premium brand, Patagonia. Our local champion in the core plus segment, Andes Origen, grew by double-digits. Cur smart affordability
initiatives continue to gain traction, led by packaging innovations such as the 340ml returnable glass bottie.

EMEA total volumes increased 3.4%. Our business in South Africa delivered a mid-single digit volume growth. We continue to focus on
growing the beer category and estimate we gained more than 200 bps of share of total alcohol. The premium segment, where we under-index,
continues to grow faster than the total industry. We achieved our highest ever market share in this segment in 2018 as our premium brands
continue to cutperform, led by Corona. Our flavored malt beverages also performed very well this year, growing by double-digits, led by Brutal
Fruit and Flying Fish. We have enhanced our smart affordability strategy in South Africa to ensure our portfolio includes accessible offerings
for more consumers in light of the challenging macroeconomic environment.

In Europe, our volumes grew in 2019, and we estimate we gained market share on a full year basis in all of our markets, with particularly
strong gains in France and the Netherlands after successful Budweiser launches. Budweiser is now our fastest growing brand in Europe. The
UK continues to deliver volume-led revenue growth fueled by the continued growth of our global brands, particularly the double-digit growth
of Corona. In addition, our volumes in Eurape were impacted by the formation of AB InBev Efes on 30 March 2018. This impact is presented
as a scope change.

In Africa excluding South Africa, volumes were lower in Tanzania and Mozambique in 2019. In Zambia and Uganda, we delivered strong
volume growth. In Nigeria, we grew volumes by double-digits in 2019 as we continued to gain market share.

Asia Pacific total volumes decreased 2.9%. In China, our volume declined by 3.0% in 2019 During 2019, we estimate we gained market
share in every channel. However, our overall market share declined by approximately 50 bps, resulting from channel mix shift given our
position in the nightlife channel. Qur super premium brands continued to grow by strong double-digits in 2019, led by Cerona, Blue Girl and
Hoegaarden. We estimate that Corona is the number one brand in the super premium segment. Blue Girl, which joined our portfolio in May
2019, is one of the fastest growing super premium brands with a meaningful base. Hoegaarden grew volumes significantly in 2019, as the
leading and fastest growing wheat beer in China. We also continue to lead the beer category in the e-commerce channel, which grew by
strong double-digits in 2019. During the Double-11 e-commerce campaign in November 2019, the largest e-commerce sales event in China,
Budweiser, was the #1 brand and Corcna, Hoegaarden and Harbin were alsc among the top five beer brands by retail sales value on both
the Tmali and JD platforms. Budweiser declined by mid-single digits in 2019, driven by the softness in the nightlife channel in the second half
of the year, as Budweiser is well-established as the leading brand of the nightlife occasion. Nevertheless, Budweiser remains the number one
brand in the premium segment and we have made additional commercial investments to accelerate the brand’s expansion into other channels.

Our business in South Korea had a challenging year with declines in volume. This performance was primarily the result of an overall industry
decline in light of weaker consumer sentiment. In late October 2019, we rolled back our price increase previously implemented in April 2019
to revitalize the beer industry during the economic downturn. Gur premium partfolio continued to grow throughout the year, led by Stella Artois
and Budweiser.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES BY REGION

The tables below provide a summary of the performance of each region, for the period ended 31 December 2019 (in million US doliar, except
volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organi¢ numbers.

2018

Currency

Organic

Organic

AB INBEV WORLDWIDE

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SGE&A

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

NORTH AMERICA

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

S5GA&A

Other operating income/{expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

restated

559 819
53 041
(19 933)
33108
(16 807)
805

17 107
21732
41.0%

2018
restated

110726
15 504
(5 765)

9738
(4 413)
40

5 365
6 199
40.0%

2018

{4 801)
(316)
14
{302)
157

8

(137)
{109)

Scope

50
8
(13
5
&)
(14)
(12)

translation

(2 664)
1030
{1 634)
829
(37)
(843)
{1123)

Currency
translation

{a9)
16
(32)
19
(13)
(15)

Currency

growth

6 209
2 268
(1 474)
794
(599)
100
295
578

Organic
growth

(2 643)
25
{27)
(2}

31
(15)

14

13

Organic

561427
52 329
(20 362)
31 967
(16 421)
875

16 421
21078
40.3%

2019

108 133
15 488
(5 789)

9 698
{4 372)
26
5352
6185
39.9%

growth %

1.1%
4.3%
(7.4Y%
2.4%
(3.6)%
12.2%
1.7%
2.7%
(65) bps

Organic
growth %

(2.4Y%
6.2%
(0.5)%
0.0%
0.7%
(36.3)%
0.3%
0.2%

2 bps

Organic

MIDDLE AMERICAS

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SGEA

Other operating income/{expenses}
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

restated

128 803
11 814
(3 336)

8278
(3 176)
88
5189
6033
51.9%

2018

(153)
(146)
(39)
(184)
56

(122)
(127)

translation

(381
108
{271)
96
(3)
(179)
(207)

Currency

growth

Organic

133 538
11912
(3 549)

8363
(3 049)
121
5435
6 356
53.4%

growth

38%
7.2%
(B.4)%
6.7%
{0.8)%
31.9%
10.7%
11.1%
188 bps

Organic

SOUTH AMERICA

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SGEA

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

restated

135 618
10 238
(3 842)

6 396
(2 976)
267

3 688
4 696
45.9%

64

(6)
73
82

translation

(1383)
529
{855)
401
(13)
(487)
{614)

growth

3858
924
(722)
203
(259)
(47}
(104}
(18}

139 664
9790
(4 009}
5781
(2791)
201
3190
4145
42.3%

growth %

2.8%
9.0%
(18.9)%
3.2%
(8.9)%
(18.1)%
(2.8)%
{0.4)%
(403) bps
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2018 Currency Organic Organic

restated ¢ translation . growth %

Volumes 87 135 (4071} - 2825 85 888 3.4%
Revenue B 368 (209) (528) 280 7911 3.4%
Cost of sales (3473) 100 224 (357) (3 506) (10.8)%
Gross profit 4 894 (110} {304) {76) 4 404 {1.6)%
SG&A (2 878) 57 183 (224) (2 862) (8.0)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 232 14 (14) 32 264 13.0%
Normalized EBIT 2248 (39) (135) (268) 1 807 (12.1)%
Normalized EBITDA 3184 (36} {196} 171) 2781 (5.4)%
Normalized EBITDA margin 38.1% 35.2% (332} bps
2018 Currency Organic Organic

ASIA PACIFIC restated e translation growth growth %
Volumes 96 116 (134) - (2814} 93 168 (2.9)%
Revenue 6 735 (8) (314) 130 6 544 1.9%
Cost of sales (3098) 3 137 40 (2 919) 1.3%
Gross profit 3637 (5) (176) 170 3625 A4.7%
SG&A (2 347) 17 108 [¢] (2 216} 0.2%
Other operating income/(expenses) 154 - (12) 88 230 57 1%
Normalized EBIT 1444 12 (80) 263 1639 18.0%
Normalized EBITDA 2178 12 (110) 208 2287 9.5%
Normalized EBITDA margin 32.3% 35.0% 241 bps
GLOBAL EXPORT 2018 Currency Organic Organic
AND HOLDING COMPANIES restated transiation iirowth growth %
Volumes 1422 (481) - 95 1036 10.1%
Revenue 582 28 8) 84 685 14.2%
Cost of sales (418} (62) 15 (125) (590) 27.1)%
Gross profit 164 (34) 6 (41) a5 {31.5}%
SG&A (1 016) (6) 21 {129) (1131) (12.7)%
Other operating incomef(expenses} 25 (6) 4 12 35 48.2%
Normalized EBIT (827) {46) 30 (158) (1001} (18.3)%
Nermalized EBITDA (558) (26) 20 (111} {676) {19.1)%

REVENUE

Qur consolidated revenue grew by 4.3% to 52 329m US dollar with revenue per hectoliter growth of 3.1% driven by global premiumization
and revenue management initiatives, although revenue per hectoliter growth decelerated as a result of advances in ocur smart affordability
strategy.

COST OF SALES

Qur cost of Sales (CoS) increased by 7.4% or 5.9% on a per hectoliter basis driven by significant commodity and transactional currency
headwinds.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cur total operating expenses increased 3.1% in 2019:

® Seiling, General & Administrative Expenses (SG&A} increased by 3.6% in 2019 in tine with our revenue growth but slightly below
inflation.

®  Other cperating income increased 12.2% in 2019 driven by higher gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (NORMALIZED EBITDA}

Qur normalized EBITDA increased 2.7% organically to 21 078m US dollar, with an EBITDA margin of 40.3%, and an organic decrease of 65
bps.

® North America EBITDA increased 0.2% to 6 185m US dollar, with a margin enhancement of 2 bps to 39.9% driven by positive brand
mix and ongaing cost efficiencies.

* Middle Americas EBITDA increased 11.1% to 6 356m US dollar, with a margin enhancement of 188 bps to 53.4% driven by the strong
top-line performance, continued cost discipline and additional capacity in Mexico, which drove efficiencies across our entire supply
chain.
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* South America EBITDA decreased 0.4% to 4 145m US dollar, with a margin contraction of 403 bps to 42.3%, mainly driven by higher
CoS resulting from commodity prices and the devaluation of transactional currency, and by the increased weight of one-way battles and
aluminum cans in our package mix, as we aim to meet consumer needs across increasingly diversified and more premium occasions.

® EMEA EBITDA decreased 5.4% to 2 781m US dollar, with a margin contraction of 332 bps to 35.2%, mainly driven by top-line growth
mere than offset by higher CoS per hectoliter, significant increases in markeling investments behind our growing premium brand portfolic
and on-trade programs in South Africa and investments behind new brand launches and the impact of route to market changes across
Europe.

* Asia Pacific EBITDA increased 9.5% to 2 287m US dollar, with a margin expansion of 241 bps to 35.0%, mainly driven by strong brand
mix, ongeing cost discipline and localization initiatives that helped to offset the declines in the nightlife channel, one of our most profitable
channels in China.

® Global Export and Holding Companies EBITDA of (676)m US dollar in the period ended 31 December 2019 (2018: {558)m US dollar).

Differences in normaiized EBITDA margins by region are due to a number of factors such as different routes to market, share of returnable
packaging in the region’s sales and premium product mix.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NORMALIZED EBITDA AND PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Mormalized EBITOA and EBIT are measures utilized by us to demonstrate the company’s underlying performance.

Normalized EBITDA is calculated excluding profit from discentinued cperations and the following effects from profit from continuing operations
attributable to our equity holders: (i) Non-controlling interest, (i} Income tax expense, (i) Share of results of associates, (iv) Net finance cost,
(v} Non-recurring net finance cost, {vi) Non-recurring ilems above EBIT {inciuding non-recurring impairment) and (vii) Depreciation,
amortization and impairment.

Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are not accounting measures under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to Profit
from continuing operations attributable to equity holders as a measure of operational performance or as an altemnative to cash flow as a
measure of liquidity. Normalized EBITDA and EBIT do not have a standard calculation method and our definition of normalized EBITDA and
EBIT may not be comparable to that of other companies.

Million US doilar Notes 2019 2018 restated
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB inBev 9171 4370
Non-controlling interest 1243 1318
Profit of the period 10 414 5688
Profit from discontinued operations 22 (424} {531}
Profit from continuing operations 9 990 5157
Income tax expense 12 2786 2 585
Share of result of associates 16 (152) (153}
Non-recurring net finance cost/(income} 11 (882) 19482
Net finance cost 11 4 355 6 B44
Non-recurring items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment) 8 323 692
Normalized EBIT 16421 17 107
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (excluding non-recurring impairment} 10 4 857 4 6§24
Normalized EBITDA 21078 21732

Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do not occur reqularly as part of the normal activities of the company. They are
presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying sustainable performance of the company due to their
size or nature. Details on the nature of the non-recurring items are disclosed in Note B Non-recurring items.

IMPACT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency exchange rates have a significant impact on our financial statements. The following table sets forth the percentage of our
revenue realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

2019 2018 restated

US dollar 30.2% 29.7%
Brazilian real 14.1% 14.0%
Chinese yuan 9.1% 8.9%
Mexican peso 9.0% 8.3%
Euro 6.1% 6.2%
Colombian peso 4.2% 4.4%
South African rand 4.1% 4.2%
Canadian dollar 3.4% 3.5%
Peruvian peso 3.1% 3.0%
South Korean won 2.5% 3.0%
Argentinean peso' 2.3% 2.7%
Pound sterling 2.3% 22%
Dominican peso 1.9% 1.7%
Other 7.7% 8.2%

! Ryperinflation accounting was adopted in 2018 to report the company's Argentinian operations.
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The following table sets forth the percentage of our nomalized EBITDA realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018:

2019 2018 restated

US dollar 30.3% 27.9%
Brazilian reat 14.5% 16.0%
Mexican peso 11.5% 10.0%
Chinese yuan 8.0% 6.5%
Euro 6.8% 8.5%
Colombian peso 5.3% 5.9%
Peruvian peso 4.6% 4.3%
South African rand 3.6% 4.3%
Argentinean peso’ 2.6% 3.2%
Canadian dollar 2.6% 27%
Dominican peso 2.5% 1.9%
South Korean won 2.1% 2.6%
Pound sterling 0.3% 0.4%
Other 5.3% 5.8%

In 2019, the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates had a negative translation impact, including hypennflation accounting impact, of 2 664m
US dollar on our revenue {2018: negative impact of 1 823m US dollar), of 1 123m US dollar on our normalized EBITDA (2018: negative impact
of 855m US dollar) and of 843m US dollar on our normalized EBIT (2018: negative impact of 823m US dollar).

Qur profit from continuing operations {after tax) has been negatively affected by the fluctuation of foreign currencies, including hyperinflation
accounting impact, for 582m US dollar (2018: negative impact of 684m US dollar), while the negative translation impact, including
hyperinflation accounting impact, on our EPS {profit attributable to our equity holders) was 527m US dollar or 0.27 US dollar per share (2018:
negative impact of 505m US dollar or 0.26 US dollar per share).

The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on our net debt amounted to 444m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2019, as compared
to an impact of 932m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2018. The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on the equity attributable
to our equity holders amounted to 1 143m US dollar (increase of equity}), as compared to an impact of 7 374m US dollar {decrease of equity)
in 2018.

PROFIT

Normalized profit attributable to our equity holders was 8 086m US dollar (normalized EPS 4.08 US dollar} in 2018, compared to 6 248m US
dollar (normalized EPS 3.16 US dollar) in 2018 (see Note 23 Changes in equity and eamings per share to the consolidated financial statements
for more details). Profit attributable to cur equity holders for 2019 was 8 17 1m US dollar, compared to 4 370m US dollar for 2018 and inciudes
the following impacts:

* Net finance costs (excluding non-recurring net finance items): 4 355m US dollar in 2019 compared to 6 844m US dollar in 2018. This
decrease was primarily due to mark-to-market adjustment linked to the hedging of our share-based payment programs amounted to a
gain of 898m USD dollar in 2019, compared to a loss of 1 774m USD dollar in 2018.

*  Non-recurring net finance income: 882m US dollar income in 2019 compared to (1 982)m US dollar cost in 2018. Non-recurring net
finance income in 2019 include mark-to-market gains of 878m US dollar {2018: (1 722)m US dollar loss) on derivative instruments
entered into to hedge the shares issued in relation to the combinations with Grupo Modelo and SAB, and 4m US dollar gain (2018:
(260)m US dollar loss) resulting from the early termination of certain bonds, income: related to the reduction of deferred considerations
on acquisitions and foreign exchange translation gains on intragroup loans that were historically reported in equity and were recycled
to profit and loss account upon the reimbursement of these loans. This impact was partially offset by non-recurring finance cost in
relation to the write-off on our investment in Delta Corporation Ltd following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation economy and
interest paid to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax ({CMS) Amnesty Program in Brazil in accordance
with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization.

® Income tax expense: 2 786m US dollar in 2019 with an effective tax rate of 22.1% compared to 2 585m US dollar in 2018 with an
effective tax rate of 34.1%. The decrease in the effective tax rate is mainly due to non-taxable gains from derivatives related tc hedging
of share-based payment programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelc
and SAB. The normalized effective tax rate was 23.0% in 2019 compared to 27.5% in 2018. The normalized effeclive tax rate excluding
mark-to-market gains or losses linked to the hecdging of our share-based payment programs was 24.9% in 2019 compared to 23.4% in
2018.

*  Profit attributable to non-controfling interest. 1 243m US dollar in 2019 compared to 1 318m US dollarin 2018.

*  Profit from discontinued operations: 424m US dollar in 2018 compared to 531m US dollar in 2018 relate to the results of our Australian
business classified as discontinued operations following the announced disposal to Asahi.
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Liquidity position and capital resources

CASH FLOWS
Miltion US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Cash flow from operating activities 13 396 14 181
Cash flow from investing activities (5073) (3 857)
Cash flow from financing activities (8512) (14 327)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations (189) {4 003)

Cash flow from operating activities

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Profit from continuing operations 9980 5157
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 11G29 16 070
Cash flow from operating activities before cthanges in working capital and use of provisions 21019 21227
Change in working capital (5) 477
Pension contributions and use of provisions (715) (487)
Interest and taxes (paid }received {7 063) (7177
Dividends received 160 141
Cash flow from operating activities on continuing operations 13 396 14181

Our cash flow from operating activities on continuing operatiens reached 13 396m US dollar in 2019 compared to 14 181m US dollar in 2018.
This decrease mainly results from lower changes in working capital and higher use of provisions in 2019 compared to 2018. The increased
use of provisions was mainly driven by 226m US dollar payment in 2019 in relation to the Eurcpean Commission investigation announced in
2018 — see also Note 27 Provisions.

Cash flow from investing activities

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Net capex (4 854) (4 568)
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (252) 173
Proceeds from the sale/(acquisition} of investment in short-term debt securities {9} 1296
Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures - (430)
Other 42 (328)
Cash flow from investing activities on continuing operations (5 073) (3 B5T)

Our cash flow used in investing activities from continuing operations was 5 073m US dollar in 2019 as compared to a cash outflow of 3 857m
US dollar in 2018. The increase in the cash outflow from investing activities was mainly due to lower proceeds from the sale of short-term debt
securities. The 2018 cash flow used in investing activities was negatively impacted by the payments related to the recovery of the Budweiser
distribution rights in Argentina as well as payments on SAB-related givestitures which were not repeated in 2019.

Our net capital expenditures amounted to 4 854m US dollar in 2019 and 4 568m US dollar in 2018. Out of the total 2019 capital expenditures
approximately 42% was used to improve the company's production facilities while 43% was used for logistics and commercial investments
and 15% was used for improving administrative capabilities and for the purchase of hardware and software.

Cash flow from financing activities

Miilion US doflar 2019 2018 restated

Dividends paid (5 015) (7 761)
Net {payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (8 008) (4 707)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 5575 -
Payment of lease liabilities (441) (423)
Other (inciuding purchase of non-controlling interests) (623) (1 436)
Cash flow from financing activities on continuing operations {8 512) (14 327)

Our cash outflow from financing activities on continuing operations amounted to 8 512m US dollar in 2019, as compared to a cash outflow of
14 327m US doilar in 2018. The net proceeds of 5 575m US dollar from the listing of a minority stake of our Asia Pagific business (Budweiser
APAC} were used to repay debt.

As of 31 December 2019, we had total liquidity of 16 260rm US dollar, which consisted of ¢ billion US dollar avaitable under committed long-
term credit facilities and 7 260m US dollar of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt securities less bank overdrafts.
Aithough we may borrow such amounts to meet our liquidity needs, we principally rely on cash flows from operating activities to fund the
company's continuing operation.

Net increase in our cash flow from discontinued operations amounted to 539rm US dollar in 2018 compared to 755m US doltar in 2018.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND EQUITY

Qur net debt was restated to reflect the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 and amounted to 95.5 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019 as
compared to 104.2 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018. When adjusted for the proceeds expected to be received from the divestment
of the Australian operations, our net debt would be 84.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019.

Net debt is defined as non-current and current interest-beaning loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt securities and cash.
Net debt is a financial performance indicator that is used by our management to highlight changes in the company’s overall liquidity position.
We believe that net debt is meaningful for investors as it is one of the primary measures our management uses when evaluating our progress
towards deleveraging.

Aside from operating results net of capital expenditures, the net debt is impacted mainly by the payment of interests and taxes (7.1 billion US
dollar), the settlement of derivatives (0.8 billion US dollar increase of net debt), dividend payments to AB InBev shareholders of AB InBev and
Ambev (5.0 billion US doflar) and the net proceeds of the IPO of our Asia Pacific subsidiary of AB InBev (5.6 billion US dollar).

Net debt to normalized EBITDA decreased from 4.6x for the 12-month period ending 31 December 2018 (on a Restated base)} to 4.0x for the
12-month period ending 31 December 2019 when accounting for the proceeds expected to be received from the divestment of the Australian
operations, while exciuding the last 12-month EBITDA from the Australian cperations.

Consolidated equity attributable to our equity holders as at 31 December 2019 was 75 722m US dollar, compared to 64 485m US dollar as at
31 December 2018. The combined effect of the strengthening of mainly the closing rates of Mexican pesos, Scuth African rand, Canadian
dollar and weakening of Euro and Brazilian real resulted in a foreign exchange translation adjustment of 1 143m US dollar {increase of equity).

Further details on interest-bearing loans and borrowings, repayment schedules and liquidity risk, are disclosed in Note 24 Interest-bearing
loans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

As of 31 December 2019, the company’s credit rating from Standard & Poor's was A- for long-term cobligations and A-2 for short-term
obligations, with a stable outlook, and the company’s credit rating from Moody’s Investors Service was Baa1 for long-term obligations and P-
2 for short-term obtigations, with a stable outlook.

Research and development

Given our focus on innovation, we place a high value on research and development. In 2019, we spent 291m US dollar in research and
development (2018: 276m US dollar}. The spent focused on product innovations, market research, as well as process oplimization and product
development.

Research and development in product innovation covers liguid, packaging and draft innovation. Product innovation consists of breakthrough
innovation, incremental innovation and renovation. The main goal for the innovation process is to provide consumers with better products and
experiencas. This implies launching new liquid, new packaging and new draught products that deliver better performance both far the
consumer and in terms of top-line results, by increasing our competitiveness in the relevant markets. With consumers comparing products
and experiences offered across very differant drink categories and the offering of beverages increasing, our research and development efforts
also require an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of other beverage categories, spotting opportunities for beer and developing
consumer solutions (products) that better address consumer need and deliver better experience. This requires understanding consumer
emotions and expectations. Sensory experience, premiumization, convenience, sustainability and design are all central to cur research and
development efforts.

Research and development in process optimization is primarily aimed at guality improvement, capacity increase (plant debottlenecking and
addressing volume issues, while minimizing capital expenditure) and improving efficiency. Newly developed processes, materials and/or
equipment are documented in best practices and shared across business regions. Current projects range from malting to bottiing of finished
preducts.

Knowledge management and feaming is also an integral part of research and development. We seek to continuously increase our knowledge
through collaborations with universities and other industries.

Our research and development team is briefed annually on the company's and the business regions' priorities and approves concepts which
are subsequently prioritized for development. The research & development teams invest in both short and long-term strategic projects for
future growth, with the launch time depending on complexity and prioritization. Launch time usually falls within the next calendar year.

The Global innovation and Technelogy Center {"GITeC"), located in Leuven, accommodates the Packaging, Product, Process Development
teams and facilities such as Labs, Experimental Brewery and the European Central Lab, which also includes Sensory Analysis. In addition to
GlITeC, we also have Product, Packaging and Process development teams located in each of our geographic regions focusing on the short-
term needs of such regions.
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Risks and uncertainties

Under the explicit understanding that this is not an exhaustive list, AR InBev's rajor risk factors and uncertainties are listed below. There may
be additional risks which AB InBev is unaware of. There may also be risks AB InBev now believes to be immaterial, but which could turn out
to have a material adverse effect. Moreover, if and to the extent that any of the risks described below materialize, they may occur in
combination with other risks which would compound the adverse effect of such risks. The seguence in which the risk factors are presented
below is not indicative of their likelthcod of occurrence or of the potential magnitude of their financial consequence.

AB InBev is exposed to the risk of a global recession or a recession in one or more of its key markets, and fo credit and capital market volatility
and an economic or financial crisis, or otherwise. These could resuit in reduced consumption or sales prices of AB InBev's products, which in
tum could result in lower revenue and reduced profit. AB inBev's financial condition and results of operations, as well as AB InBev's future
prospects, would |ikely be hindered by an ecanomic downturn in any of its key markets. Consumption of beer and other alcohot and non-
aicohol beverages in many of the jurisdictions in which AB InBev operates is tlosely linked 1o general economic conditions and changes in
disposable income. A continuation or warsening of the levels of market disruption and volatility seen in the recent past could have an adverse
effect on AB InBev's ability to access capital, its business, results of operations and financial condition, and on the market price of its shares
and American Depositary Shares.

AB InBev's results of operations are affected by fluctuations in exchange rates. Any change in exchange rates between AB InBev's operating
companies’ functional currencies and the L.S. dollar will affect its consolidated income statement and balance sheet when the results of those
operating companies are translated into U.S. dollar for reporting purposes as translationai exposures are not hedged. Also, there can be no
assurance that the policies in place to manage commodity price and transactional foreign curency risks to protect AB InBev's exposure will
be able to successfully hedge against the effects of such foreign exchange exposure, especially over the long-term. Further, the use of financial
instruments to mitigate currency risk and any other efforts taken to better match the effective currencies of AB InBev's liabilities to its cash
flows could result in increased cosls.

Changes in the availability or price of raw materials, commodities, energy and water, including as a result of unexpected increases in tatiffs
on such raw materials and commodities, like aluminum, could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's resuits of operations to the extent that
AB InBev fails o adequately manage the risks inherent in such volatility, including if AB InBev’s hedging and derivative arrangements do not
effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity prices.

AB InBev may not be able to obtain the necessary funding for its future capital or refinancing needs and may face financial risks due to its
level of debt and uncertain market conditions. AB InBev may be required to raise additional funds for its future capital needs or to refinance
its current indebtedness through public or private financing, strategic relationships or other arrangements and there can be no assurance that
the funding, if needed, will be available or provided on attractive terms. AB InBev has incurred substantial indebtedness by entering into a
senior credit facility and accessing the bond markets from time to time based on its financial needs, including as a result of the acquisition of
SAB. The portion of AB InBev’s consolidated balance sheet represented by debt will remain significantly higher as compared to its historical
position. AB InBev's increased level of debt could have significant consequences for AB InBev, including (i} increasing its vulnerability to
general adverse economic and industry conditions, (i) limiting its flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and the
industry in which AB InBev operates; (i) impairing its ability to obtain additional financing in the future and limiting its ability to fund future
working capital and capital expenditures, to engage in future acquisitions or development activities or to otherwise realize the value of its
assels and opportunities fully, {iv) requiring AB InBev to issue additional equity (potentially under unfavorable market conditions), and (v)
placing AB InBev at a competitive disadvantage compared fo its competitors that have less debt. AB InBev's ability ta repay and renegotiate
its outstanding indebtedness will be dependent upon market conditions. Unfaverable conditions, including significant price volatility,
dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the global credit markets in recent years, as well as downward pressure on credit capacity for certain
issuers without regard to those issuers’ underlying financial strength, could increase costs beyond what is currently anticipated. Such costs
could have a material adverse impact on AB InBev’s cash flows, results of operations or both. Further, AB inBev may restrict the amount of
dividends it wiil pay as a result of AB inBev's level of debt and its sirategy o give priority 1o deleveraging. Also, a credit rating downgrade
could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's ablility lo finance its ongoing operations or to refinance its existing indebtedness. In
addition, a failure of AB InBev to refinance alt or a substantial amount of its debt obligations when they become due, or more generally a
failure to raise additional equity capital or debt financing or to realize proceeds from asset sales when needed, would have a material adverse
effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

AB InBev's results could be negatively affected by increasing interest rates. Although AB InBev enters into interest rate swap agreements to
manage its interest rate risk and also enters into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to manage both its foreign currency risk and
interest-rate risk on interest-bearing financial liabilities, there can be no assurance that such instruments will be successful in reducing the
risks inherent in exposures to interest rate fluctuations.

Certain of AB InBev's operations depend on effective distribution networks to deliver its products to consumers, and distributors play an
important role in distributing a significant proportion of beer and other beverages. Generally, distributors purchase AB InBev’s producis from
AB InBev and then on-sell them either to other distributors or points of sale. Such distributors are either government-controlled or privately
owned but independent wholesale distributors for distribution of AB InBev's products, and there can be no assurance that such distributors
will not give priority to AB InBev's competitors. Further, any inability of AB InBev to replace unproductive or inefficient distributors, who could
engage in practices that harm AB InBev's reputation as consumers look to AB InBev for the quality and availability of its products, or any
limitations imposed on AB inBev to purchase or own any iMerest in distributors or wholesalers as a result of contractual restrictions, regulatory
changes, changes in legislation or the interpretations of legislation by regulators or courts could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results
of operations and financial condition.

The continued consolidation of retailers in markets in which AB InBev operates could result in reduced profitability for the beer industry as a
whole and indirectly adversely affect AB InBev's financial results.

A portion of the company's global portfolio consists of associates in new or developing markets, including investments where the company
may have a lesser degree of control over the business operations. The company faces several challenges inherent to these various culturally
and geographically diverse business interests. Although the company works with its associates on the implementation of appropriate
processes and controls, the company also faces additional risks and uncertainties with respect to these minarity investments because the
company may be dependent on systems, controls and personnel that are not under the company’s control, such as the risk that the company’s
associates may violate applicable laws and regulations, which could have an adverse effect on the company's business, reputation, results of
operations and financial condition.
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AB InBev may have a conflict of interest with its majority-owned subsidiaries. For example, a conflict of interest could arise if the subsidiary
brings a legal claim for an alleged contractual breach, which could materialty and adversely affect AB InBev's financial condition. A conflict of
interest may also arise as a result of any dual roles played by AB InBev directors who may also be managers or senior officers in the subsidiary.
Notwithstanding policies and procedures to address the possibility of such conflicts of interest, AB InBev may not be able to resolve all such
conflicts on terms favorable to AB InBev.

AB InBev relies on key third parties, including key suppliers, for a range of raw materials for its beer, alcoholic beverages and soft drinks, and
for packaging material. The termination of or any material change to arrangements with certain key suppliers or the failure of a key supplier
to meet its contractual obligations could have a material impact on AB InBev's production, distribution and sale of beer, alcoholic beverages
and scft drinks and have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Certain of
AB InBev's subsidiaries may purchase nearly ali of their key packaging materials from sole suppliers under multi-year contracts. The loss of
or temporary discontinuity of supply from any of these suppliers without sufficient time to develop an alternative source could cause AB InBev
to spend increased amounts on such supplies in the future. In addition, a number of key brand names are both licensed to third-party brewers
and used by companies over which AB InBev does not have controt. Although AB InBev monitors brewing quality to ensure its high standards,
to the extent that one of these key brand names or joint ventures, companies in which AB InBev does not own a controlling interest and/or AB
InBev’s licensees are subject to negative publicity, it could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash
flows or financial condilion.

The size of AB InBev, contractual limitations it is subject to and its position in the markets in which it operates may decrease its ability to
successfully carry out further acguisitions and business integrations. AB InBev cannot enter into further transactions unless it can identify
suitable candidates and agree on the tenms with them. The size of AB InBev and its position in the markets in which it operates may make it
harder to identify suitable candidates, including because it may be harder for AB InBev to obtain regulatory approval for future transactions_ If
appropriate oppertunities do become available, AB InBev may seek to acquire or invest in other businesses; however, any future acquisition
may pose regulatory, antitrust and other risks.

The ability of AB InBev's subsidiaries to distribute cash upstream may be subject to various conditions and limitations. The inability to oblain
sufficient cash flows from its domestic and foreign subsidiaries and affiliated companies could adversely impact AB InBev's ability to pay
dividends and otherwise negatively impact its business, results of operations and financial condition.

An inahbility to reduce costs could affect AB InBev's profitability. Additionally, the Tax Matters Agreement AB InBev has entered into with Altria
Group Inc. imposes some limits on the ability of the Combined Group 1o effect some reorganizations which it may otherwise consider.

Failure to generate significant cost savings and margin impravement through initiatives for improving operational efficiencies could adversely
affect AB InBev's profitability and AB InBev's ability to achieve its financial goals. A number of AB InBev's subsigiaries are in the process of
executing a major cost saving and efficiency program and AB InBev is pursuing a number of initiatives to improve operational efficiency. If AB
InBev fails for any reason to successfully cormnplete these measures and programs as planned or to derive the expected benefits from these
measures and programs, there is a risk of increased costs associated with these efforts, delays in benefit realization, disruption to the business,
reputational damage or a reduced competitive advantage in the medium term

A substantial porticn of AB InBev’s operations are carried out in developing Eurcpean, African, Asian and Latin American markets. AB InBev's
operations and equity investments in these markels are subject to the customary risks of operating in developing countries, which include,
amongst others, political instability or insurrection, human rights concerns, external interference, financial risks, changes in government policy,
political and economic changes, changes in the relations between countries, actions of governmental authorities affecting trade and foreign
investment, regulations on repatriation of funds, interpretation and application of local laws and regulations, enforceability of intellectual
property and contract rights, local labor conditions and regulations, lack of upkeep of public infrastructure, potential political and economic
uncertainty, application of exchange controls, naticnalization or expropriation, empowerment legislation and policy, comupt business
environments, crime and lack of law enforcement as well as financial risks, which include risk of illiquidity, inflation, devaluation, price volatility,
currency convertibility and country default. Moreover, the economies of developing countries are often affected by changes in other developing
market countries, and, accordingly, adverse changes in developing markets elsewhere in the world could have a negaltive impact on the
markets in which AB InBev operates. Such developing market risks could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operaticns and
financial condition. Furthermore, the global reach of AB InBev's operations exposes it to risks associated with doing business globally,
including changes in tariffs. The Office of the United States Trade Representative has enacted tariffs on certain imports into the United States
from China. If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on imports from China or any retaliatory trade measures are taken by China,
this could have a malerial adverse effect on global econemic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly
reduce global trade, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business in one or more of its key markets and results
of operations.

Following the categorization of Argentina in AB InBev's results for the third quarter of 2018 as a country with a three-year cumulative inflation
rate greater than 100%, the country is considered as a hyperinflaticnary economy in accordance with IFRS rules {IAS 29), resulting in the
restatement of certain results for hyperinflation accounting. If the economic or political situation in Argentina further deteriorates, the South
America operations may be subject to additional restrictions under new Argentinean foreign exchange, export repatriation or expropriation
regimes that could adversely affect AB InBev's liquidity and operations, and ability to access funds from Argentina.

AB InBev relies on the reputation of its brands and its success depends on its ability to maintain and enhance the image and reputation of its
existing products and to develop a favorable image and reputation for new products. An event, or series of events, that materially damages
the reputation of one or more of AB InBev's brands could have an adverse effect on the value of that brand and subsequent revenues from
that brand or business. Further, any restrictions on the permissible advertising style, media channels and messages used may constrain AB
InBev’s brand building potential and thus reduce the value of its brands and related revenues.

Competition and changing consumer preferences in its various markets and increased purchasing power of players in AB InBev's distribution
channels could cause AB InBev lo reduce prices of its proeducts, increase capital investment, increase marketing and other expenditures or
prevent AB InBev from increasing prices to recover higher costs and thereby cause AB InBev to reduce margins or lose market share. Also,
innovation faces inherent risks, and the new products AB InBev introduces may not be successful, while competitors may be able to respond
more quickly to the emerging trends, such as the increasing consumer preference for “craft beers” produced by smaller microbreweries. In
recent years, many industries have seen disruption from non-traditicnat producers and distributors, in many cases, from digital only
competitors. AB InBev's business could be negatively affected if it is unable to anticipate changing consumer preference for such platforms.
Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Labatt, the Canadian subsidiary of AB InBev’s subsidiary Ambev, and Tilray have a joint venture not only to research non-alcohol beverages
containing tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC") and cannabidiol (*GBD"}, both derived from cannabis, but also to commercialize a non-alcohol CBD
beverage in Canada only. This joint venture could lead to increased legal, reputational and financial risks as the laws and regulations govemning
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recreational cannabis are still developing, including in ways that AB InBev may not foresee. For instance, the invoivernent in the legal cannabis
industry in Canada may invite new regulatory and enforcement scrutiny in other markets. Cannabis remains illegal in many markets in which
AB InBev operates, and violations of Law could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising
from civil proceedings or criminal charges. Furthermare, the political environment and popular suppart for cannabis legalization has changed
quickly and remains in flux.

If any of AB InBev’s products is defective or found to contain contaminants, AB InBev may be subject to product recalls or other associated
liabilities. Although AB InBev maintains insurance against certain product liability (but not product recall) risks, it may not be able to enforce
its rights in respect of these policies and, in the event that contamination or a defect occurs, any amounts it recovers may not be sufficient to
offset any damage it may suffer, which could adversely impact its business, reputation, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

In recent years, there has been increased public and political attention directed at the alcoholic beverage and food and soft drinks industries,
as a result of health care concerns related to the harmful use of alcohol (including drunk driving, drinking while pregnant and excessive,
abusive and underage drinking) and to health concerns such as diabetes and obesity related to the overconsumption of food and soft drinks.
Negative publicity regarding AB InBev's products and brands, publication of studies indicating a significant risk in using AB InBev's products
or changes in consumer perceptions in refation to AB InBev's products generally could adversely affect the sale and consumption of AB
InBev's products and could harm its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Concems over alcohol abuse and
underage drinking have also caused governments, inciuding those in Argentina, Brazil, Spain, Russia, the United Kingdom, South Africa,
Australia and the Uniled States, to consider measures such as increased taxation, implementation of minimum alcohcl pricing regimes or
other changes to the regulatory framework governing AB InBev's marketing and other commeircial practices. Also, public concern about beer,
alcohel beverages and soft drink consumption and any resulting restrictions may cause the social acceptability of beer, alcohol beverages
and soft drinks to decline significantly and consumption trends to shift away from these products, which would have a material adverse effect
on AB InBev's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Climate change or other environmental concems, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change or other environmental
concerns, could have a long-term, material adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operations. Further, water scarcity or poor
water quality may affect AB InBev by increasing production costs and capacity constraints, which could adversely affect AB InBev's business
and results of operations. Additionally, AB InBev's inability to meet its compiiance obligations under EU emissions trading regulations may
also have an adverse impact on AB InBev's business and resuits of operations.

AB InBev's operations are subject to environmental reguiations, which could expose it to significant compliance costs and litigation relating to
environmental issues.

AB InBev may not be able to protect its current and future brands and products and defend its intellectual property rights, including trademarks,
patents, domam names, trade secrets and know-how, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations, cash
flows or financial condition, and in particular, on AB InBev's ability to develop its business.

AB InBev could incur significant costs as a result of compliance with, and/or violations of or lfabilities under, various regulations that govern
AB InBev's operations or the operations of its licensed third parties, including the General Data Protection Regulation adopted in the European
Union, which was fully implemented in May 2018,

AB inBev is now, and may in the future be, a party to legal proceedings and c¢laims, inciuding collective suits (class actions), and significant
damages may be asserted against it. Given the inherent uncertainty of litigation, it is possible that AB InBev might incur liabilities as a
consequence of the proceedings and claims brought against it. including those that are nat currently believed by it to be reasonably possible,
which could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial position. Important
contingencies are disclosed in Note 32 Contingencies of the 2019 consclidated financial statements.

AB InBev entered into a consent decree with the U.S. Department of Justice in relation 1o the combination with SAB, pursuant to which AB
InBev's subsidiary, Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC, agreed not to acguire control of a distributor if doing so would resuit in more than 10%
of its annual velume being distributed through distributorships controlled by AB [nBev in the U.S. AB InBev’s compliance with its obligations
under the settlement agreement is monitored by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Menitoring Trustee appointed by them. Were AB
inBev to fail to fuifill its obligations under the consent decree, whetner intentionally or inadvertenily, AB inBev could pe subject to monetary
fines or other penaities.

AB InBev may be subject to adverse changes in taxation, which makes up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to consumers in
many jurisdictions. Increases in excise and other indirect taxes applicabie to AB InBev's products tend to advarsely affect AB InBev's revenue
or margins, both by reducing overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to other categories of beverages, including
unrecorded or informal alcohol products. Minimum pricing is another form of fiscal regulation that can affect AB InBev's profitability.
Furthermore, AB InBev may be subject to increased taxation on its operations by national, local or foreign authorities, lo higher corporate
income tax rates or to new or madified taxation regulations and requirements. For example, the work being carried out by the Organisation
for Econamic Co-operation and Development on base erosion and profit shifting and initiatives at the European Union leve! (including the anti-
tax-avoidance tirective adopted by the Council of the European Union on 12 July 2016) as a response to increasing globalization of trade and
business operations could resuit in changes in tax treaties, the introduction of new legislation, updates to existing legisiation, or changes to
regulatory interpretations of existing legisfation, any of which could impose additional taxes on businesses. An increase in excise taxes or
ather taxes could adversely affect the financial results of AB InBev as well as its results of operations. Furthermore, the U .S. tax reform signed
on 22 December 2017 (the "Tax Act") brings major tax legislation changes into iaw. While the Tax Act reduces the statutory rate of U S. federal
corporate income tax to 21% and provides an exemption for certain dividends from 10%-owned foreign subsidiaries, the Tax Act expands the
tax base by introducing further limitations on deductibility of interest, the imposition of a “base erosion and anti-abuse tax” and the impositian
of minimum tax for “global intangible low-tax income”, among other changes, which could adversely impact the company’s results of
operations. The overall impact of the Tax Act also depends on the future interpretations and regulations that may be issued by U.S. tax
authorities, and it is possible thal futurg guidance could adversely impact the financial results of the company.

Antitrust and competition laws and changes in such laws or in the interpretation and enforcement thereof, as well as being subject to regulatory
scrutiny, could affect AB InBev's business or the businesses of its subsidiaries. For example, in connection with AB InBev's previous
acquisitions, various regulatory authorities have imposed (and may impose) conditions with which AB InBev is required to comply. The terms
and conditions of certain of such authorizations, approvals and/or clearances required, among other things, the divestiture of the company's
assets or businesses to third parties, changes to the company's operations, or other restrictions on the company’s ability to operate in certain
jurisdictions. Such actions could have a materiai adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of aperations, financial candition and
prospects. In addition, such conditions could diminish substantially the synergies and advantages which the company expects to achieve from
such future transactions.
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AB InBev operates its business and markets its products in emerging markets that, as a result of political and economic instability, a lack of
well-developed legal systems and potentialty corrupt business environments, present it with pelitical, economic and operalional risks. Although
AB InBev is committed to conducting business in a legal and ethical manner in compliance with local and international statutory requirements
and standards applicable to its business, there is a risk that the employees or representatives of AB InBev's subsidiaries, affiliates, associates,
joint ventures/operations or other business interests may take actions that violate applicable laws and regulations that generally prohibit the
making of improper payments to foreign government officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business, including laws relating to the
1997 OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business Transactions such as the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and the U K. Bribery Act.

Although AB InBev's cperations in Cuba are guantitatively immaterial, its overall business reputation may suffer or it may face additional
regulatory scrutiny as a result of Cuba being a target of U.S. economic and trade sanctions. If investors decide to liquidate or otherwise divest
their investments in companies that have operations of any magnitude in Cuba, the market in and value of AB InBev's securities could be
adversely impacted. in addition, Title Il of U.S. legislation known as the “Helms-Burton Act” authorizes private lawsuits for damages against
anyone who traffics in property confiscated without compensation by the Government of Cuba from persons who at the time were, or have
since become, nationals of the United States. Although this section of the Helms-Burton Act has been suspended by discretionary presidential
action since its inception in 1996, on 2 May 2019, the Trump Administration activated Title Il of the Helms-Burton Act, thereby allowing
naticnals of the United States that hold claims under the Helms-Burton Act to file suit in U.S. federal court against all persons trafficking in
property confiscated by the Cuban government.

As a result of the activation of Title 1i of the Helms-Burton Act, AB InBev may be subject to potential U.S. litigation exposure beginning 2 May
2018, including claims accrued during the prior suspension of Title 11l of the Halms-Burton Act. Given the unprecedented activation of Title 1|
of the Helms-Burton Act, there is substantial uncertainty as to how the statute will be interpreted by U.S. courts. AB InBev has received notice
of a claim purporting to be made under the Helms-Burton Act. It remains unclear how the activation of Title Ill of the Helms-Burton Act will
impact AB InBev's U.S. litigation exposure with respect to this notice of claim.

AB InBev may not be able to recruit or retain key personnel and successfully manage them, which could disrupt AB inBev's business ang
have an unfavorable material effect on AB InBev's financial position, its income from operations and its competitive position.

Further, AB InBev may be exposed to labor strikes, disputes and work stoppages or slowdowns, within its operations or those of its suppliers,
or an interruption or shortage of raw materials for any other reason that could lead to a negative impact on AB InBev’s costs, eamings, financial
condition, production level and ability to operate its business. AB InBev's producticn may also be affected by work stoppages or slowdowns
that affect its suppliers, distributors and retail delivery/logistics providers as a result of disputes under existing collective labor agreements
with labor unions, in connection with negotiations of new collective labor agreements, as a result of supplier financial distress or for other
reasons. A work stoppage or slowdown at AB InBev's facilities could interrupt the transport of raw materials from its suppliers or the transport
of its products to its custemers. Such disruptions could put a strain on AB InBev's relationships with suppliers and customers ang may have
lasting effects on its business even after the disputes with its labor force have been resolved, including as a result of negative publicity.

AB InBev relies on information techneclogy systems to process, transmit, and store electronic information. Although AB InBev takes various
acticns to prevent cyber-attacks and to minimize potential technology disruptions, such disruptions could impact AB InBev's business. For
example, if outside parties gained access to AB InBev's confidential data or strategic information and appropriated such information or made
such information public, this could harm AB InBev’'s reputation or its competitive advantage, or could expose AB InBev or its customers o a
risk of 1058 or misuse of information. More generally, technology disruptions can have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business,
results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

AB InBev's business and operating results could be negatively impacted by social, technical, natural, physical or other disasters.

Although AB InBev maintains insurance policies to cover various risks, it also uses self-insurance for most of its insurable risks. Should an
uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, this could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operations and financial
condition.

If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, impairment charges on goodwill or other intangibie assets may be incurred in the
future that could be significant and that could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations and financial condition.

The audit report included in AB InBev's annual report is prepared by an auditor who is not inspected by the U.S. Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (PCAQB}. This lack of PCAOB inspections in Belgium prevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating audits and quality
control procedures of any auditors eperating in Belgium, including AB InBev's auditors. As a result, U.S. and other investors may be deprived
of the benefits of PCAOB inspections.

AB inBev's ordinary shares currently irade on Euronext Brussels in eurcs, the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in South African rand, the
Mexican Stock Exchange in Mexican pesos and its ordinary shares represented by American Depositary Shares {the “ADSs”) trade on the
New York Stock Exchange in U.S. dollars. Fluctuations in the exchange rates between the euro, the South African rand, the Mexican peso
and the U.S. dollar may result in temporary differences between the value of AB InBev's ordinary shares trading in different currencies, and
between its ordinary shares and its ADSs, which may result in heavy trading by investors seeking to exploit such differences.

Risks arising from financial instruments
Note 29 of the 2019 consolidated financial statemenis on Risks arising from financial instruments contain detailed information on the
company’s exposures to financial risks and its risk management policies.

Events after the balance sheet date

Please refer to Note 35 Events affer the balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate governance

For information with respect to Corporate Governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance section, which forms an integral part of our
annual report.
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Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of AB InBev SA/NV certifies, an behalf and for the account of the company, that, to their knowledge, (a) the financiat
statements which have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabiiities, financia! position and profit or loss of the company and the entities included in the consolidation as a whole and (b) the management

report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the entities included
in the consolidation as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS REPORT TO THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING OF
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV NV/SA ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

We present to you our statutory auditor's report in the context of our statutory audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (jointly “the Group”). This report
includes our report on the consolidated financial statements, as well as the other legal and regulatory requirements.
This forms part of an integrated whole and is indivisible.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting d.d. 24 April 2019, following the proposal
formulated by the board of directors and following the recommendation by the audit committee and the proposal
formulated by the works' council. Our mandate will expire on the date of the general meeting which will deliberate on
the annual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, We have performed the statutory audit of the consolidated
financial statements of Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA for one year.

Report on the consolidated financial statements
Unqualified opinion

We have performed the statutory audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consclidated income statement, the
consclidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information, and which is characterised
by a consolidated statement of financial position total of USD 236 648 milion and a profit for the year of
USD 10 414 million.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group'’s net equity and consolidated
financial position as at 31 December 20619, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by
the European Union and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium.

Basis for unqualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Belgium.
Furthermore, we have applied the Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as approved by the 1AASB which are
applicable to the year-end and which are not yet approved at the national level. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Statutory auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Belgium, including the
requirements related to independence.

We have obtained from the board of directors and Company officials the explanations and information necessary for
perferming cur audit.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

75



FINANCIAL REPORT

A

pwc

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consclidated financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite

useful life — impairment testing

As described in Notes 3, 14 and 15 o the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has recorded
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
for an amount of USD 168 331 milion as of
31 December 2018, which represents 71% of the
conselidated statement of financial position as of that
date. An annual impairment is conducted by
management, in accordance with IAS 36, in which
management applies a discounted free cash flow
approach based on current acquisition valuation models
for its cash-generating units showing a high invested
capital to EBITDA multiple, and valuation muitiples for
its other cash-generating units. The Company uses a
strategic plan based on external sources in respect of
macro-economic assumptions, industry, inflation and
foreign exchange rates, past experience and identified
initiatives in terms of market share, revenueg, vanable
and fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital
assumptions. Management's cash flow projections
include significant judgments and assumptions, such as
weighted average cost of capital and the terrinal
growth rate.

The principal considerations for our determination that
performing procedures relating to the impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
is a key audit matter are the following.

(i} the high degree of auditor judgment and
subjectivity in applying procedures relating ta the
valuation of the cash-generating-units due to the
significant amount of judgment by management
when developing this estimate,

the audit effort involved the use of professianals
with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in
evaluating the audit evidence abtained from
these procedures and

the significant audit effort necessary in evaluating
the significant assumptions relating to the
estimate, such as weighted average cost of
capital and the terminal growth rate

(i)

(iii)

Addressing the matier involved performing procedures
and evaluating audit evidence in connection with
forming cur overall opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. These procedures included testing the
effectiveness of controls refating to management's
goodwill and indefinite-lived asset impairment testing,
including controls over the identification ana valuation
of the Company’s cash-generating units. These
procedures also included, among others, testing
management’s process for developing the fair value
estimates; evaluating the appropriateness of the
discounted cash flow model; testing the completeness,
accuracy, and relevance of underlying data used in the
models; and evaluating the significant assumptions
used by management, such as weighted average cost
of capital and the terminal growth rate.

Evaliating management's assumptions involved
evaluating whether the assumptions used by
management were reasonable considering (i) the
current and past performance of the reporting unit,
(i) the consistency with external market and industry
data, (iii) whether these assumptions were consistent
with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit and
(iv) analysis of sensitivities in the Company's
discounted cash flow model. Professionals with
specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in
the evaluation of the Company’s discounted cash flow
model and certain significant assumptions, including
weighted average cost of capital and the terminal
growth rate,
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Uncertain tax positions

As described in Notes 4 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, significant judgment by
management is reguired in determining the worldwide
provision for income tax. The estimate of the
Company's fax liabilities relating to uncertain tax
positions requires management t¢ assess uncertainties
and to make judgments about the application of
complex tax laws and regulations. The Company
operates oh a global basis and, as management has
further disclosed, investigations and negotiations with
local tax authorities are ongoing in various jurisdictions
at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these
can take considerable time to conclude. In assessing
the amount of any income tax provisions to be
recognized in the consclidated financial statements,
estimation is made of the expected successful
settlement of these matters.

The principal considerations for cur determination that
uncertain tax positions is a key audit matter are the
following:

(i} the high degree of auditor judgment and
subjectivity in applying procedures related to
uncertain tax positions due to the significant
amount of judgment by management when
developing this estimate, including a high degree
of estimation uncertainty relative to the numerous
and complex tax laws, frequency of tax audits,
and the considerable time to conclude
investigations and negotiations with local tax
authorities as a result of such audits,

the involvement of professionals with specialized
skill and knowledge to assist in evaluating the
audit evidence obtained from these procedures.

(i)

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures
and evaluating audit evidence in connection with
forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. These procedures included testing the
effectiveness of controls relating to completeness of the
uncertain tax positions, as well as controls over
measurement of the liability. These procedures also
included, among others, (i) testing the information used
in the calculation of the income tax provisions, including
intercompany agreements, international, federal, and
state filing positions, and the related final tax retums;
(ii) testing the calculation of the income tax provision by
jurisdiction, including management's assessment of the
technical merits of tax positions and estimates of the
amount of tax benefit expected to be sustained; (iii)
testing the completeness of management's assessment
of both the identification of uncertain tax positions and
possible outcomes thereof;, and (iv) evaluating the
status and results of income tax audits with the relevant
tax authorities.

Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge were
used to assist in the evaluation of the completeness and
measurement of the Company’s uncertain tax positions,
including  evaluating the reasonableness of
management’s assessment of whether tax positions are
more-likely-than-not of being sustained and the amount
of potential benefit to be realized, the application of
relevant tax laws, and estimated interest and penalties.

Emphasis of matter — change in accounting principle

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts

for leases in 2019. Our opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Other matter - predecessor auditor

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another
auditor whe expressed an unqualified opinion on these consolidated financial statements in his report dated

27 February 2019.
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Responsibilities of the board of directors for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The boarg of directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unien and with the
legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium, and for such internal control as the board of directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of ¢onsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consoiidated financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going ¢oncern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurarce is & high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

In performing our audit, we comply with the legal. regulatory and normative framework applicable to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Belgium. A statutory audit does not provide any assurance as to the Company's
future viability nor as to the efficiency or effectiveness of the board of directors’ current or future business management.

Asg part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frorn error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control;

+ Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of directors;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our statutory auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our statutory auditor’s report. However, fulure events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial staternents represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation;

* Qbtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, incfuding any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of mast significance
in the audit of the consclidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements
Responsibiiities of the board of directors

The board of directors is respensible for the preparation and the content of the directors’ report on the consclidated
financial statements.

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities

In the context of our mandate and in accordance with the Belgian standard which is complementary to the Intemnational
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Belgium, our responsibility is to verify, in all material respects, the
directors’ report on the consolidated financia! statements and to report on these matters.

Aspects related to the directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, after having performed specific procedures in relation to the directors' report on the consolidated
financial statements, this report is consistent with the consclidated financial statements for the year under audit, and it
is prepared in accordance with article 3:32 of the Companies’ and Asscciations’ Code.

In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we are also responsible for considering. in particular
based on the knowledge acquired resulting from the audit, whether the directors’ report is materially misstated or
contains information which is inadequately disclosed or otherwise miskeading. In light of the procedures we have
performed, there are no material misstatements we have lo report to you.

The non-financial informaltion required by virtue of article 3:32, §2 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code is included
in the directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements. The Company has prepared the nen-financial
informaticn, based on the reference framework Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards and relevant United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals

However, in accordance with article 3:80, §1. 5° of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code, we do not express an

opinicn as to whether the non-financial information has been prepared in accordance with the said framework as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
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pwc

Stat t related to independence

+ Our registered audit firm and our network did not provide services which are incompatible with the statutory audit
of the consclidated financial statements, and our registered audit firm remained independent of the Group in the
course of our mandate.

*+ The fees for additional services which are compatible with the statutory audit of the consolidated financial
statements referred 1o in article 3.:65 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code are correctly disclosed and
itemized in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Other statements

This report is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee referred to in article 11 of the Regulation (EU)
N°® 537/2014.

Sint-Stevens-Woluwe, 27 February 2020
The statutory auditor

PwC Bedrijffsrevisoren BV / Reviseurs d'Entreprises SRL
Represented by

(..

Koen Hens
Statutory Auditor
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Million US dollar, except earnings per shares in US dollar restated’
Revenue 52 329 53 01
Cost of sales (20 362) (19 933)
Gross profit 31 967 33 108
Distribution expenses (5 525) (5612)
Sales and marketing expenses (7 348) (7 774)
Administrative expenses (3 548) (3421)
Other operating income/{expenses) 7 875 803
Profit from operations before non-recurring items 16 421 17 107
Restructuring 8 (170} (363)
Acquisition costs business combinations 8 (23) (73)
Business and asset disposal 8 (50) (26)
Brazil state tax regularization program 8 {74) -
Cost related to public offering of minornity stake in Budweiser APAC 8 (6) -
Provision for EU investigation 8 - (230)
Profit from operations 16 098 16 414
Finance cost 11 (4 873) (7 279)
Finance income 11 518 435
Non-recurring net finance income/{cost) 1 882 {1582)
Net finance income/({cost) (3 473) (B B26)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures 16 162 153
Profit before tax 12776 T4
Income tax expense 12 (2 786) {2 585)
Profit from continuing operations 9990 5157
Profit from discontinued operations 22 424 531
Profit of the period 10 414 5688
Profit from continuing operations attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev 8748 3839

Non-controlling interest 1243 1318
Profit of the period attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4370

Non-controlling interest 1243 1318
Basic earnings per share 23 4.62 2.21
Diluted earnings per share 23 453 217
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 23 4.41 1.94
Diluted earmnings per share from continuing operations 23 432 1.91
Basic earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations? 23 4.08 316
Diluted eamnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations? 23 3.99 311
Underlying EPS? 23 363 4.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

' The consolidated income statement for 2018 has been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective application and the
classification of the Australian operations as discantinued operations.

2 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, as well as Underlying EPS, are not defined
metrics in IFRS. Refer to Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share for more details
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Mitlion US dollar 2019 restated’
Profit of the period 10 414 5 688

Other comprehensive income: items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits (182) 99
(182) 99

Other comprehensive income: items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 947 (7 916)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of net investment hedges (157) 114
Cash flow hedges recognized in equity 182 512
Cash flow hedges reclassified from equity to profit or loss (292) (565)
680 (7 855)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 498 (7 756)
Total comprehensive income 10 912 {2 068}

Aftributabie to:
Equity holders of AB InBev 10 044 (2 998)
Non-controlling interest 867 930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements

! The consclidated staterment of comprehensive income far 2018 has been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of (FRS 16 under the full retrospective
application.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 31 Decemhber 1 January 2018
Million US dollar Notes 2019 2018 restated’ restated’
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 27 544 27 615 29 233
Goodwill 14 128 114 133311 140 940
Intangible assets 15 42 452 44 §31 45 874
Investments in associates and joint ventures 16 5 861 6136 5263
Investment securities 17 110 108 100
Deferred tax assets 18 1719 1517 1251
Employee benefits 25 14 16 22
Income tax receivables 1081 992 708
Derivatives 29 132 281 25
Trade and other receivables 20 807 769 834
Total non-current assets 207 834 215 587 224 251
Current assets

Investment securities 17 92 a7 1304
Inventories 19 4427 4234 4119
Income tax receivables 627 457 a08
Derivatives 29 230 16 458
Trade and other receivables 20 6 187 6 375 6 566
Cash and cash equivalents 21 7238 7074 10 472
Assets classified as held for sale 22 10 013 39 133
Total current assets 28 814 18 281 23 960
Total assets 236 648 233 B6B 248 208
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 23 1736 1736 1736
Share premium 17 620 17 620 17 620
Reserves 24 882 19 061 24 833
Retained earnings 31484 26 068 28 387
Equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 75722 64 485 72 576
Nan-contrelling interests 33 8 831 7 404 7624
Total equity 84 553 71889 80 200
Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 24 97 564 106 997 110 637
Employee benefits 25 2 848 2681 24993
Deferred tax liabilities 18 12 824 13 165 13 107
Income tax payables 1022 576 732
Derivatives 29 352 766 937
Trade and other payables 28 1943 1816 1462
Provisions 27 701 1152 1515
Total non-current liabilities 117 254 127 153 131 383
Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts 21 68 114 17
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 24 5410 4 584 7 848
Income tax payables 1346 1220 1558
Derivatives 29 3799 5 574 1457
Trade and other payables 28 22 864 22 568 24 762
Provisions 27 210 766 885
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 22 1145 - -
Total current liabilities 34 841 34 826 36 625
Total equity and liabilities 236 648 233 868 248 208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

! The consclidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 have been restated 1a reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16
under the full retrospective apolication. The Australian operations have been classified as assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 without restaternent of the
respective balances as at 31 December 2018 as required by IFRS 5.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

Million US dotlar

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit from continuing operations

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Impairment losses on receivables, inventories and other assels
Additions/(reversals) in provisions and employee benefits

Nel finance cost/(income)

Loss/{gain} on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Loss/(gain) on sale of subsidiaries, associates and assets held for sale
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Income tax expense

Other non-cash items included in profit

Share of result of associates and joint ventures

Cash fiow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of
provisions

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Pension contributions and use of provisions

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Dividends received

Income tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of ¢cash acquired

Sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of

Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of investment in short-term debt securities
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of other assets

Net repayments/(payments} of loans granted

Proceeds from assets held for sale

Proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures

Taxes on SAB transaction-related divestitures

Cash flow from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Purchaseysale of non-controlling interest

Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC
Proceeds from borrowings

Payments on borrowings

Cash net finance (cost)income other than interests

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid

Cash fiow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents on discontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations
Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafis at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Corporate information

Statement of compliance

Summary of significant accounting policies
Use of estimates and judgments
Segment reporting

Acguisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
Cther operating income/(expenses)
Nan-recurring items

Payroli and related benefits

Additional information on operating expenses by nature
Finance cost and income

Income taxes

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Investment securities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Inventories

Trade and cther receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with
assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Changes in equity and earnings per share

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

Praovisions

Trade and other payables

Risks arising from financial instruments

Operating leases

Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, loans to customers and other
Contingencies

Non-controlling interests

Related parties

Events after the balance sheet date

AB InBev companies
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1. Corporate information

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
{(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
{NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people logether for a better world. Beer, the ariginal social network, has been bringing people together
for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using the finest
naturai ingredients. Our diverse portfolic of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella Artois®; multi-
country brands Beck’s®, Hoegaarden®, Leffe® and Michelob Uitra®; and local champions such as Aguila®, Antarclica®, Bud Light®,
Brahma®, Cass®, Castle®, Castie Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Especial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and Skek®. Our
brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our Eurcpean roots at the Den Hoomn brewery
in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. Te Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 170 000 employees based in nearly 50 countries
worldwide. For 2019, AB InBev's reported revenue was 52.3 billion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and associates).

The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the company and its subsidiaries
({together referred to as "AB InBev” or the "company”) and the company’s interest in associates, joint ventures and operations.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2020.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the European Union up to 31 December 2019
(collectively “IFRS™). AB InBev did not early apply any new {FRS requirements that were not yet effective in 2019 and did not apply any
European carve-outs from IFRS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these censolidated financial statements by
the company and its subsidiaries.

(A} BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Depending con the applicable IFRS requirements, the measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is cost, net realizable
value, fair value or recoverable amount. Whenever IFRS provides an option between cost and another measurement basis (e.g. systematic
re-measurement), the cost approach is applied.

{B) FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Uniess otherwise specified, all financial information included in these financial statements has been stated in US dollar ang has been rounded
to the nearest million. As from 2009, following the combination with Anheuser-Bush, the company changed the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements from the euro to the US dollar to provide greater alignment of the presentation currency with AB InBev's
most significant cperating currency and underlying financial performance. The functicnal currency of the parent company is the euro.

{C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabiiities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recegnized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

{D) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by AB InBev. AB InBev controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, potential
voting rights are taken into account. Control is presumed to exist where AB InBev owns, directly or indirectly, more than one half of the voting
rights (which does not always equate to economic ownership), uniess it can be demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controtling interests having a geficit balance.

Associates are undertakings in which AB InBev has significant influence over the financial and operating policies, but which it does not control.
This is generatly evidenced by ownership of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. A joint venture is an arrangement in which AB InBev
has jeint control, whereby AB InBev has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for by the equity method of accounting, from the date that significant influence or joint
cantrol commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When AB InBev's share of losses exceeds the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture, the carrying amount is reduced to nit and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that AB InBev has incurred legal or constructive obligations on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Joint operations arise when AB InBev has rights to the assets and obligations to the liabilities of a joint arrangement. AB InBev accounts for
its share of the assets, liabifities, revenues and expenses as from the moment joint operation commences until the date that joint operation
ceases.
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The financial statements of the company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations and associates are prepared for the same reporting
year as the parent company, using consistent accounting poiicies. In exceptional cases when the financial statements of a subsidiary, joint
venture, joint operation or associate are prepared as of a different date from that of AB InBev, adjustments are made for the effects of
significant transactions or gvents that occur between that date and the date of AB InBev's financial statements. In such cases, the difference
between the end of the reporting period of these subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations or associates from AB InBev's reporting period
is no more than three months. Results from the company’s associates Anadolu Efes and Castel are reported on a three-month iag. Therefore,
estimates are made to reflect AB InBev’s share in the result of these associates for the last quarter. Such estimates are revisited when
required.

Transactions with non-controlling interests are treated as transactions with equity owners of the company. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity where there is no loss of controi.

Ali intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between group companies have been eliminated.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with joint ventures, joint operations and associates are eliminagted to the extent of AB InBev's
interest in the entity. Unrealized fosses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that thare is no evidence of
impairment.

A listing of the company's most important subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations and associates is set out in Note 36 AB inBev
companies.

(E) SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IFRS with effective application for annual periods beginning on 1% January 2019:
IFRS 16 Leases became effective on 1 January 2019 and was applied by the company for the first time as of that date, under the full
retrospective application, with an initial application date as of 1 January 2017.

IFRS 16 Leases

{FRS 16 replaces the current lease acCounting requirements and introduces significant changes 1o lessee accounting, removing the distinction
between operating and finance leases under IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations and requiring a lessee to recognize a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability at lease commencement date. IFRS 16 also requires the recognition of depreciation charges relating to right-of-use
assets and interest expenses on lease liabilities, as compared to the recognition of operating lease expenses or rental costs on a straight-iine
basis over the lease term, as was the case under prior requirements. In addition, the company has amended the consolidated cash flow
statement presentation in order to segregate the payment of leases into a principal portion presented within financing activities and an interest
component presented within operating activities.

For short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the company continues to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted
by IFRS 186, and payments for these leases are presented in cash flow from oOperating activities. As a lessor, the company continues to classify
leases as either finance leases or operating leases and accounts for thase two types of leases differently.

The company has chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, conseguently, has restated the comparative information in these
financial statements. |n addition, the company has applied the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 to not reassess whether
a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease under IAS 17 and its related interpretations will continue to apply to the
leases entered or modified before 1 January 2019.

As a function of the transition to IFRS 186, the company recognized 1.7 billion US doflar of right-of-use assets and 1.8 billion US doliar of lease
liabilities. Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of future lease payments discounted using incremental borrowing rates that
consider the nature of the underlying assets and term of the leases.

Additional information is presented in Note 13 Property, plant and equipment, Note 24 Inferest-bearing loans and borrowings and Note 28
Risks arising from financial instruments.

A number of other new standards, amendment to standards and new interpretations became mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not been listed in these consolidated financial statements as they either do not apply or are immaterial
to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Effective 1 January 2019, AB InBev adopted IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments and has elected to apply IFRIC 23
retrospectively. The cumulative effect of the interpretation was recognized at the date of initial application and the company has not restated
comparative periods in the year of initial application. AB InBev reviewed the income tax treatments in order to determine whether the
interpretation couild have an impact on the consolidated financial statements. tn that respect, as at 31 December 2018, the company
reclassified 573m US dollar of its existing income tax provisions into income tax liabilities, consistently with the current discussions held at the
IFRS interpretation Committee, which concluded that an entity is required to present assets and liabilities for uncertain tax treatments as
current tax assets/liabilities or deferred tax assets/liabilities.
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(F) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the balance sheet. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the transiation of monetary assets and liabilities ¢genominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated tc US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates the fair value was determined.

Translation of the results and financial position of foreign operations

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income
statements of foreign operatiens, excluding foreign entities in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to US dollar at exchange rates for
the year approximating the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The components of shareholders’ equity are
translated at historical rates. Exchange differences arising from the translation of shareholders’ equity to US dollar at period-end exchange
rates are taken to other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

Financial Reporting in hyperinflationary economies

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation, leading Argentina’s three-year cumulative inflation to exceed 100% and
thus, triggering the requirement to transition to hyperinflation accounting as prescribed by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies. IAS 29 requires that the results of the company’s Argentinian operations be reported as if these were highly inflationary as of 1
January 2018.

Under IAS 29, non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost, equity and income statements of subsidiaries operating in
hyperinflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency, applying a general price index,
These re-measured accounts are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate. As a result, the balance sheet and
net results of subsidiaries operating in hyperinflation economies are stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting
period.

Exchange rates
The most important exchange rates that have been used in preparing the financial statements are:

Closing rate Average rate

1 US dollar equals: 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Argentinean peso 59.890668 37.807879 - ) -
Awstralian dollar 1.423804 1.416593 1.438543 1.334300
Brazilian real 4.030696 3.874806 3.940998 o 3.634827
Canadian dollar 1.299449 1.362882 1.329140 : 1.293896
Colembian peso 3 272.63 3246.70 330584 .2 967.36 .
Chinase yuan 6.961461 6.877787 6.886265 ___6.581607
Euro 0.890155 0.873362 0.892577 " 0.845697
Mexican peso 18.845242 19.682728 19.334915 18.195084
Pound sterling 0.757344 0.781249 0.784062 © 0.750773
Peruvian nuevo sol 3.317006 3.369993 3.346670 ©3.284477
South Korean won 1154.54 1115.40 1 160.69 o 1095.468
South African rand 14.044287 14.374909 14.512975 . 13.105486

(G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding,
recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

is

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, is capitalized if the product or process is technically and commerciaily feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of materials,
direct laber and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Gther development expenditure is recognized in the income statement as an expense
as incurred. Capitalized development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below} and impairment losses (refer
to accounting policy Q).

Amortization related to research and development intangible assets is included within the cost of sales if production related and in sales and
marketing if related to commercial activities.

Borrowing costs directly attributable te the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.
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Supply and distribution rights

A supply right is the right for AB InBev to supply a customer and the commitment by the customer to purchase from AB InBev. A distribution
right is the right o sell specified products in a certain territory. Acquired distribution rights are measured initially at cost or fair value when
obtained through a business combination. Amortization related to supply and distribution rights is included within sales and marketing
axpenses.

Brands

If part of the consideration paid in a business combination relates to trademarks, trade names, formulas, recipes or technological expertise
these intangible assets are considered as a group of complementary assets that is referred to as a brand for which one fair value is determined.
Expenditure on internally generated brands is expensed as incutred.

Software

Purchased software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization. Expenditure on internally developed software is capitalized when
the expenditure qualifies as development activilies; otherwise, it is recognized in the income staterent when incurred. Amortization related to
software is included in cost of sales, distribution expenses, sales and marketing expenses or administrative expenses based on the activity
the software supports.

Other intangible assets

QOther intangible assets, acquired by the company, are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Other
intangible assets also include multi-year sponsorship rights acquired by the company. These are initially recognized at the present valve of
the future payments and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embedied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Amartization

Intangible assats with a finite life are amartized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Licenses, brewing, supply and
distribution rights are amortized over the period in which the rights exist. Brands are considered to have an indefinite life unless ptans exist to
discontinue the brand. Discontinuance of a brand can be either through sale or termination of marketing support. When AB InBev purchases
distribution rights for its own products the life of these rights is considered indefinite, unless the company have a plan to discontinue the related
brand or distribution. Software and capitalized development costs related to technology are amortized over 3 to 5 years.

Brands are deemed intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and, therefare, are not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual
basis (refer to accounting policy Q).

Gains and iosses on sale

Net gains on sale of intangibie assets are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses on sale are included as
other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the control has been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing managerial involvement
with the intangible assets.

(H) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The company applies the acguisition method of accounting to account for acquisitions of businesses. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred and equity instruments issued. Identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair value as of the acguisition date. The
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

The allocation of fair values to the identifiable assets acquired and fiabilities assumed is based on various assumptions requiring management
judgment.

Acquisition-related costs are expersed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of AB InBev’s previously held interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

() GOODWILL

Goodwill is determined as the excess of the consideration paid over AB InBev’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate recognized at the date of acquisition. All business
combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

In conformity with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is stated at cost and not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual basis
and whenever there i an indicator that the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated, may be impaired (refer to accounting
policy O} Goodwill is expressed in the currency of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity to which it relates and is translated to US doliar
using the year-end exchange rate. In respect of associates and joint ventures, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate.

If AB InBev's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabiiities recognized exceeds the cost of the
business combination such excess is recognized immediately in the income statement as required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill is expensed as incurred.
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{J) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (refer to accounting policy O). Cost
includes the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset tc the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management (e.g. nonrefundable tax and transport cost). The cost of a self-constructec asset is
determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset. The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as the useful lives are
reassessed and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.

Subsequent expenditure

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when
that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Residuai values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually.
Depreciation is calculated from the date the asset is available for use, using the straight-line methed over the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

The estimated useful lives are defined in terms of the asset's expected utility to the company and can vary from one geographicat area to
another. On average the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Industrial buildings — other real estate properties 20 - 50 years
Production plant and equipment:

Production equipment 10 - 15 years

Storage, packaging and handling equipment 5- 7 years
Returnable packaging:

Kegs 2 - 10 years

Crates 2 - 10 years

Bottles 2 - 5 years
Point of sale furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Information processing equipment 3 -5years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of items of property, plant and equipment are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses on
sale are presented as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the control has been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing
managerial involvement with the property, plant and equipment.

{K) LEASES

The company as lessee

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of a contract. The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and payments for these leases are presented in cash flow from operating
activities.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present vaiue of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease, If this rate cannot be readily determined, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate specific to the
country, term and currency of the contract. In addition, the company considers its recent debt issuances as well as publicly available data for
instruments with similar characteristics when calculating the incremental borrowing rates.

Lease payments include fixed payments, less any lease incentives, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the
commencement date, and purchase options or extension option payments if the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset and are recognized as an expense in the income statement in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
OCCUrS.

A lease liability is remeasured upon a change in the lease term, changes in an index or rate used to determine the lease payments or
reassessment of exercise of a purchase option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the related right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The right-of-use assets are depreciated starting at the commencement date over the shorter period of useful life of the underlying
asset and lease term (refer to accounting policies J and O).
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The lease liability is presented in the ‘Interest-bearing loans and borrowings’ line and the right-of-use assets are presented in the ‘Property,
plant and eguipment’ line in the consolidated statement of financial position. In addition, the principal portion of the lease payments is presented
within financing activities and the interest component is presented within operating activities in the consolidated cash flow statement.

The company as lessor

Leases where the company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases
of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially retained by the company are classified as operating leases.
Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(L) INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes expendifure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. The weightad average method is used in assigning the cost of inventories.

The cost of finished products and work in progress comprises raw materials, other production materials, direct labor, other direct cost and an
allocation of fixed and variable overhead based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs.

Inventories are written down on a case-by-case basis if the anticipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of the
inventories. The calculation of the net realizable value takes into consideration specific characteristics of each inventory categery, such as
expiration date, remaining shelf life, slow-moving indicators, amongst others.

(M) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and generaily
due for settiement within 30 days. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the ameount of the consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at adjusted for the time value of money. The company holds trade
and other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortized cost less impaimment losses. To determine the appropriate amount to be impaired factors
such as significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default, enter into bankruptcy or financial reorganization,
ar delinguency in payments are considered.

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amorized cost. Any impairment losses and foreign
exchange results are directly recognized in profit or loss.

(N} CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition that are readily convertible into cash. They are stated at face value, which approximates their fair value. In the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.

(O) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of property, ptant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangibies with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually at
the cash-generating unit feve! {(that is a country or group of countries managed as a group beiow a reporting region). An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses
are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is determined as the higher of their fair vaiue less costs to sell and value in use. For an assot
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. The recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite usefu! tife belong
is based on discounted future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific 10 the assel. These calcuiations are corrcborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units firstly reduce allocated goodwill and then the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the unit on a pio rata basis.

Reversal of impairment losses

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment ioss had been recognized,
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{P) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
A number of AB InBev's accounting policies and notes require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial items.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. When measuring fair value, AB InBev uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on lhe inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

® Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: inputs are cbservable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
* Level 3: fair value measurements incorporates significant inputs that are based on unobservabie market data.

if the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in ils entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The company applies fair value measurement to the instruments listed below.

Derivatives

The fair value of exchange traded derivatives (e.g. exchange traded foreign currency futures) is determined by reference to the official prices
published by the respective exchanges (e.g. the New York Board of Trade). The fair value of over-the-counter derivatives is determined by
commonly used valuation techniques.

Debt securities

This category includes both debt securities designated at FVOC! and FVPL. The fair value is measured using observable inputs such as
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. When it pertains to instruments that are publicly traded, the fair value is determined by reference
to observable quotes. In circumstances where debt securities are not publicly traded, the main valuation technique is the discounted cash
flow. The company may apply other valuation techniques or combination of valuation techniques if the fair value results are more relevant.

Equity securities designated as at FVOCI
Investments in equity securities comprise quoted and unquoted securities. When liquid quoted prices are available, these are used to fair
value investments in quoted securities. The unquoted securities are fair valued using primarily the discounted cash flow method.

Non-derivative financiat liabilities

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities is generally determined using unobservable inputs and therefore fall into level 3. In these
circumstances, the valuation technique used is discounted cash flow, whereby the projecied cash flows are discounted using a risk adjusted
rate.

(Q) SHARE CAPITAL

Repurchase of share capital
When AB InBev buys back its own shares, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a
deduction from equity under treasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends paid are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the date that the dividends are declared unless minimum statutory
dividends are required by local legistation or the bylaws of the company’s subsidiaries. In such instances, statutory minimum dividends are
recognized as a liability.

Share issuance costs
Incremental costs directly attributable fo the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(R) PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when (i} the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, (i) it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and {iii} a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of meney and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognized when the company has approved a cetailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring has
either commenced or has been announced publicly. Costs relating to the ongoing activities of the company are not provided for. The provision
includes the benefit commitments in connection with early retirement and redundancy schemes.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. Such provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Disputes and Litigations

A provision for disputes and litigation is recognized when it is mere likely than not that the company will be required to make future payments
as a result of past events, such items may include but are not limited to, several claims, suits and actions relating to antitrust laws, violations
of distribution and license agreements, environmental matters, employment related disputes, claims from tax authorities, and alcohol industry
litigation matters.
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(S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits

Post-employrent benefits include pensicns, post-employment life insurance and post-employment medical benefits. The company cperates
a number of defined benefil and defined contribution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-
managed funds. The pension pians are generally funded by payments from employees and the company, and, for defined benefit plans taking
account of the recommendations of independent actuaries. AB InBev maintains funded and unfunded pension plans.

a} Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement when incutred. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which AB InBev pays fixed contributions into a fund. AB InBev has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hald sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
For defined benefit plans, the pension expenses are assessed separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method. The projected
unit credit method considers each period of sefvice as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitternent. Under this method, the cost of
providing pensions is charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of employees in accordance
with the advice of qualified actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans at least every three years. The amounts charged to the income
statement include current service cost, net interest cost (income), past service costs and the effect of any curtailments or settlements. Past
service costs are recognized at the eartier of when the amendment / curtailment occurs or when the company recoghizes refated restructuring
or termination costs. The pension cobligations recogrized in the balance sheet are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates based on high quality corporate bond yields, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liability, less the fair value of any plan assets. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
{excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the
statement of comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Where the calculated amount of a defined benefit liability is negative (an asset), AB InBev recognizes such pension asset to the extent that
economic benefits are available to AB InBev either from refunds or reductions in fulure contributions.

Other post-employment obligations

Some of AB InBev's companies provide post-employment medical benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually based
on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense at the earlier when the company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date and when the company recognizes costs
for a restrucluring. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized if the company has made an offer encouraging voiuntary
redundancy and when the company can no ionger withdraw the offer of termination, which is the earlier of either when the employee accepts
the offer or when a legal, regulatory or contractual requirement or restriction on the company’s ability to withdraw the offer takes effect.

Bonuses

Bonuses received by company employees and management are based on pre-defined company and individual target achievement. The
estimated amount of the bonus is recognized as an expense in the period the bonus is eamed. To the extent that bonuses are settled in
shares of the company, they are accounted for as share-based payments.

(T} SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Different share and share option programs allow company senior managemant and members of the board to acquire shares of the company
and some of its affiliates. The fair value of the share options is estimated at grant date, using an option pricing model that is most appropriate
for the respective option. Based on the expected number of options that will vest, the fair value of the options granted is expensed over the
vesting period. When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the company obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

(U) INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount
being recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective interest rate basis.

(V) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
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(W) INCOME TAX

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is also recognized directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In accordance with |1AS 12 Income Taxes deferred taxes are provided using the so-called balance sheet liability methoed. This means that, for
all taxable ang deductible differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet a deferred
tax liability or asset is recognized. Under this method a provision for deferred taxes is also made for differences between the fair values of
assets and liabilities acguired in a business combination and their tax base. |IAS 12 prescribes that no deferred taxes are recognized (i} on
initial recognition of goodwill, (i} at the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combinatien and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit and (i) on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future and to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the reversal. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using currently or
substantively enacted tax rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax autherity on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The company recognizes deferred tax assets, including assets arising from losses carried forward, to the extent that future probable taxabie
profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be uiilized. A deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Tax claims are recorded within provisions on the balance sheet {refer to accounting policy R}.
{(X) INCOME RECOGNITION

Goods sold

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied, meaning when
the company transfers control of a product to a customer.

Specifically, revenue recognition follows the following five-step approach:

® [dentification of the contracts with a customer

® Identification of the performance obligations in the contracts

® Determination of the transaction price

® Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
Revenue recognition when performance obligations are satisfied

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the amount that reflects the best estimate of the consideration expected to receive in exchange
for those goods. Contracts can include significant variable elements, such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions.
incentives, performance bonuses and penalties. Such trade incentives are treated as variable consideration. If the consideration includes a
variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer. Variable consideration is only included in the transaction price if it is highly probable that the amount of
revenue recognized would net be subject te significant future reversals when the uncertainty is resolved.

Royalty income

The company recognizes the sales-based or usage-based royalties in other operating income when the later of the following events occurs:
(a) the customer’s subsequent sales or usage; and (b) the performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based
royalty has been allocated has been satisfied {or partialty satisfied).

Rental income
Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Government grants

A government grant is recognized in the balance sheet initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be received
and that the company will comply with the conditions attached to it. Grants that compensate the company for expenses incurred are recognized
as other operating income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the company
for the acquisition of an asset are presented by deducting them from the acquisition cost of the related asset.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest received or receivable on funds invested, dividend income, foreign exchange gains, losses on currency
hedging instruments offsetting currency gains, gains an hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, gains on
financial assets measured at FVPL as weli as any gains from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z}.

Interest income is recognized as it accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectability is in doubt.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared.
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(Y) EXPENSES

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings, calcuiated using the effective interest rate msthod, foreign exchange losses, gains
on currency hedging instruments offsetting currency losses, results on interest rate hedging instruments, losses on hedging instruments that
are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, losses on financial assets classified as trading, impairment losses on financial assets as well
as any losses from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Al interest costs incurred in connection with borrowings or financial transactions are expensed as incurred as parn of finance costs. Any
difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings, such as transaction costs and fair
value adjustments, are recognizet in the income statement (in accretion expense} over the expected life of the instrument on an efiective
interest rate basis (refer to accounting policy V). The interest expense component of lease payments is also recognized in the income
statement (in accretion expense) using the effective interest rate meathod.

Research and development, advertising and promotional costs and systems development costs

Research, advertising and promotional costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred. Development costs and systems
developrnent costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred if they do not meet the criteria for capitalization {refer to
accounting policy G).

Purchasing. receiving and warehousing costs

Purchasing and receiving costs are included in the cost of sales, as well as the costs of storing and moving raw materials and packaging
materials. The costs of stering finished products at the brewery as well as costs incurred for subsequent storage in distribution centers are
included within distribution expenses.

(Z) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

AB InBev uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the transactional impact of foreign currencies, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices on the company’s performance. AB InBev's financial risk management pelicy prohibits the use of derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes and the company does therefore not hoid or issue any such instruments for such purposes.

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, the company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Debt financial
instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, FYOC! or FVPL. The classification is based on two criteria: the objective of the
company's business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding {the 'SPPI criterion’).

The classification and measurement of the company’s financial assets is as follows:

& Debt instruments at amortized cost: comprise investments in debt securities where the contractual cash flows are sclely payments of
principal and intergst and the company’s businass model is to collect contractual cash flows. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and any impairment charges for such instrumenis are recognized in profit or loss.

& Debt instruments at FVYOC!I with gains or losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition: comprise investments in debt securities
where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of piincipal and interest and the company’s business model is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Interest income, foreign exchange gains anad losses and any impairment
charges on such instruments are recognized in profit or [0ss. All other fair value gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of these debt securities, any related balance within FVOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or ioss.

*  Equity instruments designated at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or ioss on derecognition: these instruments are
undertakings in which the company does not have significant influence or control and is generally evidenced by ownership of less than
20% of the voting rights. The company designates these investments on an instrument by instrument basis as equity securities at FVOCI
because they represent investments heid for iong term strategic purposes. Investments in unquoted companies are subseguently
measured at cost, when appropriate. These investments are non-monetary items and gains or losses presented in the other
comprehensive income inciude any related foreign exchange component. Dividends received are recognized in the profit or loss. These
investments are not subject to impairment testing and upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income are not reclassified to profit or loss.

* Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL: comprise denvative instruments and equity instruments which were not designated as FVQOCGI.
This category also includes debt instruments which do not meet the cash flow or the business mode! tests.

Hedge accounting

The company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commadity prices. Tg hedge changes in the fair value
of recognized assets, liabilities and firn commitments, the company designates certain derivatives as part of fair value hedge. The company
also designates certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign exchange risk on a net investment in a foreign
operation.

At the inception of the hedging relationships, the company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.
Hedge effectiveness is measured at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to
ensure that an economic relationship exists between hedged item and hedging instrumert.

Far the diffecent type of hedges in place, the company generally enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging
instrument match exactly the terms of the hedged item. Therefore, the hedge ratio is typically 1:1. The company performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness. In circumstances where the terms af the hedged item no longer exactly match the critical terms of the hedging
instrument, the company uses a hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are changes in
the timing of the forecasted transaction, changes in the guantity of the hedged item or changes in the credit risk of either parties to the
derivative contract.
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Cash flow hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting is applied when a derivative hedges the variability in cash flows of a highly probabie forecasted transaction,
foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a recegnized asset or liability (such as variable interest rate instrument).

When the hedged forecasted fransaction or firm commitment subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserves is included directly in the initial carrying amount of the non-financial item when it is recognized.

For all other hedged transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserves is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period during
which the hedged itemn affects profit or loss (e.g. when the variable interest expense is recognized).

When a hedging instrument cr hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss (at that point) remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or foss when the hedged transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

Any ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value hedge accounting

When a derivative hedges the variability in fair value of a recognized asset or liability (such as a fixed rate instrument) or a firm commitment,
any resulting gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in the profit or loss. The carrying amount of the hedged item is also adjusted
for fair value changes in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. The fair value adjustment to
the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortized to profit or loss from the date of discontinuation.

Net investment hedge accounting
When a non-derivative foreign currency liability hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, exchange differences arising on the translation
of the liability to the functional currency are recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

When a derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operaticn, the portion of the gain or the loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be effective is recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves) and is reclassified to
profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation, while the ineffective portion is reported in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financia! liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and cnly when,
the company has a currently legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(AA) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the company’'s business activities about which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by senior management. The company has six operating segments.

AB InBev's operating segment reporting format is geographical because the company's risks and rates of return are affected predominantly
by the fact that AB InBev operates in different geographical areas. The company’s management structure and intemal reporting system to the
Board of Directors is set up accordingly. The cempany’s five gecgraphic regions are North America, Middle Americas, Scuth America, EMEA
and Asia Pacific.

The aggregation criteria applied are based on similarities in the economic indicators (e.g. margins) that have been assessed in determining
that the aggregated cperating segments share similar econcmic characteristics, as prescribed in IFRS 8. Furthermore, management assessed
additional factors such as management's views on the optimal number of reporting segments, AB InBev historical geographies, peer
comparison (e.g. Asia Pacific and EMEA being a commonly reported regions amangst the company's peers), as well as management's view
on the optimal balance between practical and more granular information.

The results of Global Export and Holding Companies, which includes the company's global headquarters and the export businesses in
countries in which AB InBev has no operations are reperted separately. The company's five geographic regions plus the Global Export and
Holding Companies comprise the company’s six reportable segments for financial reporting purposes.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other
than goodwill.

(BB) NON-RECURRING ITEMS

Non-recurring items are those that in management's judgment need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence. Such items
are disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Transactions
which may give rise to non-recurring items are principally restructuring activities, impairments, gains or losses on disposal of investments and
the effect of the accelerated repayment of certain debt facilities.

(CC) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A, discontinued operation is a compenent of the company that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

AB InBev classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount witl be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use if all of the conditions of IFRS 5 are met. A disposal group is defined as a group of assets to
be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred. Immediately before classification as held for sale, the company measures the carrying amount of the asset (or all the assets
and liabilities in the disposal group}) in accordance with applicable IFRS. Then, on initiat classificaticn as held for sale, non-current assets and
disposal groups are recognized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale are included in profit or loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement. Non-current assets classified
as held for sale are no longer depreciated or amortized.
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(DD} RECENTLY ISSUED IFRS

To the extent that new IFRS requirements are expected to be applicable in the future, they have not been applied in preparing these
consclidated restated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

A number ot amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2019, and have not been discussed either
because of their non-applicability or immateriality to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements.

4. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
resufts of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recogrized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that periad ar, if the revision affects both current and future periads, in the
period of the revision and future periods.

Although each of its significant accounting policies reflects judgments, assessments or estimates, AB InBev believes that the following
accounting policies teflect the most critical judgments, estimates and assumptions that are important to its business operations and
understanding resuits: business combinations, intangible assets, goodwill, impairment, provisions, share-based payments, employee benefits
and accounting for current and deferred tax.

The fair values of acquired identifiable intangibles are based on an assessment of future cash flows. Impairment analyses of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are performed annuaily and whenever a triggering event has occurred, in order to determine whether the
carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. These calculations are basad on estimates of future cash flows.

The company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods including the discounted cash flow method and option valuation models and
makes assumptions about the fair value of financial instruments that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.

Actuarial assumptions are established to anticipate future events and are used in calcuiating pension and other long-term employee benefit
expenses and liabilities. These factors include assumptions with respect to interest rates, rates of increase in health care costs, rates of future
campensation inGreases, tumover rates, and life expectancy.

The company is subject to income tax in humerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required to determine the worldwide provision for
income tax. There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Some subsidiaries within the
group are involved in tax audits and local enquiries usually in relation to prior years. Investigations and negotiations with iocal tax authorities
are ongoing in various jurisdictions at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these can take considerabfe time to conclude. In assessing
the amount of any income tax provisions to be recognized in the financial statements, estimates are made ¢f the expected successful
settlement of these matters. Estimates of interest and penalties on tax liabilities are also recorded. Where the final outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period that such determination is made.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the following year are further disctissed in the relevant notes hereafter.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant judgments made by management in applying the company's accounting
policies and the key sources of uncertainty relate mainly to the following: the reporting of the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’
existing Russia and Ukraine businesses into AB InBev Efes which closed on 30 March 2018; the adoption of hyperinflation accounting for the
company’s Argentinean operations: the reporting of proceeds from the public offering of a minority stake in the company’s Asia Pacific
subsidiary, Budweiser Brewing Company APAC Limited {“Budweiser APAC"); and the reporting of its Australian operations as assets held for
sale as discussed below.

(A) MERGER QF BUSINESSES IN RUSSIA AND UKRAINE WITH ANADQLU EFES

On 30 March 2018, AB InBav announced the compietion of the 50:50 merger of its Russia and Ukraine businesses with those of Anadolu
Efes. Following completion, the company’s operations in Russia and Ukraine and those of Anadolu Efes are fully combined under a new
company called AB InBev Efes. The combined business is fully consolidated into Anadolu Efes financial accounts. AB InBev has stopped
consolidating the results of these operations as of the second quarter 2018 and account for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity
method. Refer to Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of Subsidiaries and Note 16 investments in associates.
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(B) HYPERINFLATION IN ARGENTINA

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation, resulting in Argentina’s three-year cumulative inflation exceeding 100%
in 2018, and thus requiring a transition to hyperinflation accounting as of 1 January 2018, as required by |AS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies. The main principle in 1AS 29 is that the financial statements of an entity that reports in the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy must be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, each of (1) the
non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost and (2} the equity and the income statement of subsidiaries operating in
hyperinflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general price index.
Monetary items that are already stated at the measuring unit at the end of the reporting period are not restated. These re-measured accounts
are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate.

Consequently, the company applied hyperinflation accounting for its Argentinean subsidiaries for the first time in the year-to-date September
2018 unaudited condensed interim financial statements, with effect as of 1 January 2018. The IAS 29 rules are applied as follows:

& Non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost (e.g. property plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, etc.) and
equity of Argentina were restated using an inflation index. The hyperinflation accounting impacts resulting from changes in the general
purchasing power from 1 January 2018 are reported in the income statement in a dedicated account for hyperinflation monetary
adjustments in the finance line (see also Note 11 Finance cost and incomey);

® The income statement is adjusted at the end of each reporting period using the change in the general price index. It is converted at the
closing exchange rate of each period (rather than the year-to-date average rate which is used for non-hyperinflationary economies),
thereby restating the year-tc-date income statement account for both inflation index and currency conversion.

The 2019 results, restated for purchasing power, were translatecd at the December 2019 closing rate of 59.890668 Argentinean pesos per US
dollar (2018 results - at 37.807879 Argentinean pesos per US dollar}.

(C) ANNOQUNCED DIVESTITURE OF AUSTRALIA BUSINESS TO ASAHI

On 198 July 2019, AB InBev announced an agreement to divest its Australia business (Carlton & United Breweries) to Asahi for AUD 16.0
billion, equivalent to approximately USD 11.2 billion'. As part of this transaction, the company will grant Asahi rights to commercialize its
portiolio of global and international brands in Australia. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2020, subject to customary
closing conditions, including but not limited to regulatory approvals in Australia.

Effective 30 September 2019, AB InBev classified the assets and Habilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale
and liabilities associated with assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
In addition, since the resulls of the Australian operations represent a separate major line of business, these are now accounted for as
discontinued operations as required by IFRS 5 and presented in a separate line in the consolidated income statement (“profit from discontinued
operations”). Refer to Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

(B) LISTING OF BUDWEISER APAC ON THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

On 30 September 2019, the company successfully completed the listing of a minority stake of its Asia Pacific subsidiary, Budweiser APAC,
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for USD 5.75 billion (including the exercise of an over-allotment aption). On 3 October 2019, the over-
allotment option in connection with the initial public offering of a minority stake of Budweiser APAC was fully exercised. Following the fult
exercise of the over-allotment option, AB InBev controls 87.22% of the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. Refer to Note 23 Changes
in equity and earnings per share.

! Converted inte US dollars at the Decemter 2019 closing rate of 1.423803.
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6. Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

The table below summarizes the impact of acquisitions and disposals on the statement of financial position and cash flows of AB InBev for 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

2019 2018

Million US dollar Acquisitions Acquisitions

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 44 2 (1} (310)
Intangible assets 128 24 {29) (17)
Deferred tax assels - 23 - -
Trade and other receivables - - - (86)
Investments in associates (15) - - -

Current assets

Inventories 43 17 (N (84)
Income tax receivables - - - (2)
Trade and other receivables 19 2 (1) (73)
Cash and cash equivalents 40 8 - (6)
Assels held for sale - - - (27}

Non-current liabilities

Interast-bearing loans and borrowings 11 (3) - -
Trade and other payables (110) - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (33) - 9 4

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables {65) (19) 2 406
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 40 54 {27) {201}
Non-controlling interest {12} - 2 1
Goodwill on acquisitions and goodwill disposed of 682 107 (22) {652)
Lossf(gain) on disposal - - (21) {15)
Consideration to be (paid)/received (275} (112) - 47
Net cash paid on prior years acquisitions 16 68 (65) -
Recycling of CTA in respect of net assets - - - {584}
Contribution in kind - - - 1150
Consideration paid/{received} 451 117 {(133) {254}
Cash (acquired)/disposed of {40} (5) - {3}
Net cash outflow / {inflow) 411 112 (133) (257)
Net cash outflow / (inflow) on continuing operations 385 84 (133) (257)
Net cash outflow / (inflow) on discontinued operations 28 28 - -

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes' existing Russia and Ukraine businesses as
discussed in Note 4 (A). This transaction involved the contribution by AB InBev of its existing Russia and Ukraine businesses to AB InBev
Efes in exchange for a S0% ownership in AB inBev Efes. In line with IFRS, the contribution by AB InBev of its existing Russia and Ukraine
businesses to AB InBev Efes, with AB InBev losing control, is accounted for as a deemed disposal and the 50% non-controlling interest AB
InBev received in AB InBev Efes in exchange for such contribution is accounted for as a deemed acguisition of an investment in associate,
with both acquisition and disposal measured at their fair value estimated at 1.15 billion US dollar representing the estimated value of the 50%
investment AR InBev will hold in AB InBev Efes after adjustment for net debt. See also Mote 16 Investments irt associates.

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev derecognized 573m US dollar net assets related to its former Russia and Ukraine businesses and recycled
584m US dollar from other comprehensive income 1o the consolidated income statement, resulting in a net exceptional, non-cash ioss of Tm
US dollar {see also Note 8 Non-recurring items).

The company undertock a series of additional acquisitions and disposals during 2018 and 2019, with no significant impact in the company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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7. Other operating income/{expenses)

Million US doliar 2019 2018 restated
Govemment grants 280 317
License income 30 45
Net (additions to)reversals of provisions (10) (11}
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets held for sale 172 80
Net rental and other operating income 402 374
Other operating incomel{expenses) 875 805

The government grants relale primarily to fiscal incentives given by certain Brazilian states and Chinese provinces, based on the company’s
operations and developments in those regions.

In 2019, the company expensed 281m US dotlar in research, compared to 276m US dollar in 2018. The spend focused on product innovations,
market research, as well as process optimization and product development.

8. Non-recurring items

1AS 1 Presentation of financial statements requires that material items of income and expense be disclosed separately. Non-recurring items
are items that in management's judgment, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence so that a user can obtain a proper
understanding of the company’s financial information. The company considers these items to be significant and accordingly, management
has excluded them from their segment measure of performance as noted in Note 5 Segment Reporting.

The non-recurring items included in the income statement are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Restructuring (170) (363)
Acquisition costs business combinations (23) (73}
Business and asset disposal (including impairment losses) (50) (26}
Brazil State tax regularization program (74) -
Cost related to public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC (6) -
Provisicn for EU investigation - (230}
Impact on profit from operations {323) (692)
MNon-recurring net finance income/(cost) 882 (1982)
Non-recurring taxes (6) 240
Non-recurring non-controlling interest 108 32
Net impact on profit attributable to equity holders of AB inBev 661 {2 402}

The non-recurring restructuring charges for 2019 total (170)m US dollar (20%8: (363)m US dollar). These charges primarily relate to
organizational alignments. These changes aim to eliminate ovedapping organizations or duplicated processes, taking into account the
matching of empioyee profiles with new organizational requirements. These exceptional expenses provide the company with a lower cost
base and bring a stronger focus to AB InBev's core aclivities, quicker decision-making and improvements to efficiency, service and quality.

The acquisition costs of business combinations amount to (23)m US dollar in 2019, prmarily related to cost incurred to facilitate the
combination with SAB (2018: (7.3)m US dollar).

Business and asset disposals amount to (50)m US dollar in 2019, mainly comprising of costs incurred in relation to the announced divestiture
of the Australia business. Business and asset disposals amounted to (26)m US dollar in 2018, mainly related to the costs incurred related to
the IFRS treatment of the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes' Russia and Ukraine businesses and the related transaction costs
{see also Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries).

In 2019, Ambev made a payment of (74)m US dollar to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICMS) Amnesty
Program in Brazil in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.

The company incurred 117m US dollar in fees related to the initial public offering of a minority stake of Budweiser APAC, its Asia Pacific
subsidiary, of which 8m US dollar were reported in the income statement and 111m US dollar were capitalized in equity. In addition, the
company has also reported 58m US dollar stamp duties in equity that are directly attributable to the public offering of Budweiser APAC.

In 2018, the European Commission announced an investigation into alieged abuse of a dominant position by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain practices aimed at restricting trade from other European Union member states to Belgium. In connection with these proceedings, a
provision of 230m US was recognized in 2018 and settled in 2019. Refer also to Note 27 Provisions.

The company incurred non-recurring net finance income of 882m US dollar for 2019 (2018: (1 982)m US dollar cost) — see Note 11 Finance
cost and income.

All the amounts referencec above are before income taxes. The non-recurring items as of 31 December 2019 increased income taxes by
6m US dollar and decreased incorne taxes by 240m US dollar in 2018. Non-contrelling interest on the non-recurring items amounts to 108m
US dollar in 2019 (2018: 32m US dollar).
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9. Payroll and related benefits

Wages and salaries (4 563) (4 638)
Social security contributions (683) (694}
Other personnel cost (678) (708}
Pension expense for defined benefit plans (193) (192)
Share-based payment expense (340) (353)
Contributions to defined contribution plans (101} (109)
Payroll and related benefits (6 558) {6 694}

The number of full time equivalents can be split as follows:

2019 2018

AB InBev NV (parent company) 204 180
Other subsidiaries 171 711 172 596
Total number of FTE 171 915 172 776

10. Additional information on operating expenses by nature

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2019 consclidated income statement:

Depreciation and

impairment of Amortization and Depreciation and

. property, plant and impairment of impairment of Impairment of
Million US dollar equipment intangible assets ig goodwill
Cost of sales 2751 86 11 -
Distribution expenses 155 4 191 -
Sales and marketing expenses 379 247 160 -
Administrative expenses 277 290 98 -
Other operaling expenses 8 - - -

Depreciation, amortization

. R 3570 627 460 -
and impairment

Depreciation, amnortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2018 restated consalidated income statement:

Depreciation and
impairment of Amortization and Depreciation and

property, ptant and impairment of impairment of Impairment of
Million US dollar (restated) eguipment intangible assets ight-of-use asset goodwitl
Cost of sales 2 807 67 - -
Distribution expenses 166 3 186 -
Sales and marketing expenses 414 165 153 -
Administrative expenses 285 254 116 -
Other operating expenses 8 - - -

Depreciation, amortization

. ) 3680 489 455 -
and impairment

The depreciation, amortization and impairment of property, plant and equipment included a full-cost reallocation of 5m US dollar in 2019 from
the aggregate depreciation, amortization and impairment expense to cost of goods sold (2018: 1m US dollar).
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11. Finance cost and income

The finance costs included in the income statement are as follows:

Interest expense {4 168) (4 141)
Capitalization of borrowing costs 19 23
Net interest on net definad benefit abilities (95) (94)
Accretion expense {650) (511)
Net losses on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship {393) (449)
Net foreign exchange results (net of the effect of foreign exchange derivative instruments) {180) 19
Tax on financial transactions (79) (110)
Net mark-to-market results on derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs 898 (1774)
Other financiai costs, including bank fees {225) (242)
Finance costs, excluding non-recurring items {4 873) {7 279)
Non-recurring finance cost (222) (1 982)
Finance costs (5 095) {9 261)

Finance income included in the income statement is as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Interest income 410 333
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 86 46
Other financial income 21 56
Finance income, excluding non-recurring items 518 435
Non-recurring finance income 1104 -
Finance income 1622 435

Finance costs, excluding non-recurring items, decreased by 2 406m US dollar compared to 2018 mainly as a result of mark-to-market on
certain derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs. In 2019, the mark-to-market on such derivatives amounted to a
gain of 898m US dollar (2018: 1 774m US dollar loss).

Borrowing costs capitalized relate to the capitalization of interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying
assets mainly in China and South Africa. Interest is capitalized at a borrowing rate ranging from 3% to 4%.

In 2019, accretion expense includes interest on lease liabilities of 124m US dollar (2018: 111m US dollar).

interest expenses is presented net of the effect of interest rate derivative instruments hedging AB InBev's interest rate risk — see also Note 29
Risks arising from financial instruments.

Non-recurring finance cost for 2019 includes:

* 188m US dollar write-off on the company's investment in Delta Corporation Ltd following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinftation
economy;

®  34m US dollar of interest paid to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICM3) Amnesty Program in Brazil
in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.

Non-recurring finance income for 2019 includes:

® 445m US doliar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments entered into to hedge the shares issued in relation
to the combination with Grupo Modeio (2018: 873m US dollar loss). See also Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share,

®*  433m US dollar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on derivatives entered into to hedge the restricted shares issued in
connection with the combination with SAB (2018: 849m US dollar loss);

® 226m US dollar gains resulting from the early termination of certain bonds, income related to the reduction of deferred considerations
on acquisitions and foreign exchange translation gains on intragroup loans that were historically reported in equity and were recycled
to profit and loss account upon the reimbursement of these loans (2018: 260m US dollar loss).

No interest income was recognized on impaired financial assets.
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The interest income stems from the following financial assets:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 237 256
Investment debt securities held for trading 9 22
Other loans and receivables 164 55
Total 410 333

The interest income on other loans and receivables includes the interest accrued on cash deposits given as guarantees for certain legal
proceedings pending resolution.

For further information on instruments hedging AB InBev's foreign exchange risk see Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

12. Income taxes

Income taxes recognized in the income statement can be detailed as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Current year (2 863) (2 704)
(Underprovided )foverprovided in prior years 58 101
Current tax expense {2 805) (2 603)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 21} (148)
{Utilization }recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses 13 120
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 27 46
Deferred tax (expense)/income 19 18
Total income tax expense {2 786) (2 585)
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The reconciliation of the effective tax rate with the aggregated weighted nominal tax rate can be summarized as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit before tax 12776 7 741
Deduct share of result of associates and joint ventures 152 153
Profit before tax and before share of result of associates and joint ventures 12 624 7 588

Adjustments on taxable basis

Government incentives {709) (742)
Neon-deductible/{non-taxable) marked to market on derivatives {1776) 3 496
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1223 1796
Other non-taxable income (282) (158)

11 080 11 980
Aggregated weighted nominal tax rate 26.2% 26.5%
Tax at aggregated weighted nominal tax rate {2 901) (3172)

Adjustments on tax expense

Utilization of tax losses not previously recognized 13 120
Recognition of deferred taxes assets on previous years’ tax losses 27 46
Write-down o_f deferred tax assets on tax losses and current year (137) (125)
losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognized
{Underprovided)overprovided in prior years 58 101
Deductions from interest on equity 666 471
Deductions from goodwill 20 17
Other tax deductions 259 400
US Tax reform {change in tax rate and other} - 116
Change in tax rate (95) 144
Withholding taxes (505) (403)
Other tax adjustments (191) (300}
(2 786) {2 585)
Effective tax rate 22.1% 34.1%

The total income tax expense for 2019 amounts to 2 786m US dollar compared to 2 585m US dollar for 2018. The effective tax rate decreased
from 34.1% for 2018 to 22.1% for 2019. The 2019 effective tax rate was positively impacted by non-taxable gains from derivatives refated to
the hedging of share-based payment programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo
Modelo and SAB. The 2018 effective tax rate was negatively impacted by non-deductible losses from these derivatives.

During 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulling from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulation and guidance. Such remeasurement resulted in an adjustment of 116m US dollar in 2018 to
the reperted current and deferred taxes.

The company benefits from tax exempted income and tax credits which are expected to continue in the future. The company does not have
significant benefits coming from low tax rates in any particular jurisdiction.

The nommalized effective tax rate for the period ended 31 December 2019 is 23.0% (2018: 27.5%). Normalized effective tax rate is not an
accounting measure under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to the effective tax rate.

Normalized effective tax rate method does not have a standard calculation method and AB InBev's definition of normalized effective tax rate
may not be comparable to other companies.

Income taxes were directly recognized in other comprehensive income as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits 19 22
Cash flow and net investment hedges 88 108
Income tax {losses)/gains 107 130
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises owned and leased assets, as follows:
31 December 31 December

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Property, plant and equipment owned 25 515 25 638
Property, plant and equipment leased (right-of-use assets) 2029 1977
Total property, plant and equipment 27 544 27 615

31 December
31 December 2019 2018 restated’

Plant and

equipment,
Land and  fixtures and Under
Million US dollar buildings fittings construction

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 12 155 33 540 2274 47 969 48 297
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (94) (374) a7 (485) {3 086)
Acquisitions 48 1236 3167 4 451 4 342
Acquisitions through business combinations - 22 2 24 2
Disposals (208) (1777) 2} (1987) {1474)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries (1 (3} - (4) (1128}
Zﬁ"gﬁ;‘:}g‘éz ;:?:Zr assel categories 318 1737 (3 264) {1211 1014
Balance at end of the period 12 216 34 381 2160 48 757 47 969

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (3 450) {18 881} - (22 331) {21 414}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 40 270 - 310 1392
Depreciation (409) (2 961) - {3370) {3530)
Disposals 119 1615 - 1734 1249
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries 1 2 - 3 818
Impairment losses (1} (86) - (87) (91)
catogoris and other movernents' % 403 : 499 (755)
Balance at end of the period (3 604) (19 638) - (23 242) {22 321)

Carrying amount
at 31 December 20138 8 704 14 659 2274 25638 25638
at 31 December 2019 8612 14 743 2160 25515 -

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 625m US doliar in property, plant and equipment to assets held
for sale as at 31 December 2019 — see Note 22 Assetls classified as held for sale, liabilities assaciated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment subject to restrictions on title amounted to 4m US dollar (31
December 2018; 8m US daltar).

Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment amounted to 457m US dollar as at 31 December 2019 compared to
418m US dollar as at 31 December 2018,

1 The 2018 balances have been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective application. As required by IFRS 5, the Australia
property, plant and equipment balances for the Australia operations were reclassified to assets held for sale as at 31 Decembear 2019 without restatement of 2018
balances.

2 The transfer (to)/from other asset categories and other movements relates mainly to transfers from assets under construction to their respective asset categories,
to contributions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant and equipment held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued poperations and to the restatement of non-monetary assets under hyperinflation accounting in line with
|AS 29 Financial reporting in hyperinfiationary economies. Accordingly, the 2019 transfers include the balances of Australian operations reclassified to assets held
for sale as at 31 December 2019,
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AB InBev's net capital expenditures in the statement of cash flow amounted to 4 854m US dollar in 2018 and 4 568m US dollar in 2018. Out
of the total 2019 capital expenditures approximately 42% was used tc improve the company's production facilities white 43% was used for
logistics and commercial investments and 15% for improving administrative capabilities and for the purchase of hardware and software.

Property, plant and equipment leased by the company (right-of-use assets) is detailed as follows:

Machinery,

Land and equipment

Million US dollar buildings and other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1723 306 2029
Depreciation for the period (329) (160} (489)

2018 restated

Machinery,

Land and equipment

Miltion US doltar buildings and other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1824 353 1977
Depreciation for the period (318) (150) (468)

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 84m US dollar right-of-use assets to assets held for sale — see
Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

Following the sale of Duich and Belgian pub real estate to Cofinimmo in October 2007, AB InBev entered into lease agreements with a term
of 27 years. These lease agreements will mature in November 2034. Furthermore, the company leases a number of warehouses, trucks,
factory facilities and other commercial buildings, which typically sun for a period of five to ten years. Lease payments are increasec annually
to reflect market rentals, if applicable. None of the leases include contingent rentals.

Additions to right-of-use assets during 2019 were 420m US dollar (2018 215m US dollar). The expense related to short-term and low-value
leases and variable lease payments that are not included in the measurament of the lease liabilities is not significant. In 2019, AB InBev
recognized right-of-use assets on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 12m US dollar (2018 nil} — see also note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of
subsidianes.

The company leases out pub real estate for an average outstanding period of 6 to 8 years and part of its own property under operating leases.
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14. Goodwill
Miltion US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 133 316 140 980
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 53 (7 541)
Disposals through the saie of subsidiaries (22) {652)
Acquisitions through business combinaticns 682 107
Hyperinflation monetary agjustments 171 435
Reclassified as held for sale {6 081) (13)
Balance at end of the period 128 119 133 316

Impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year {5) {40)
impairment losses - -
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - 35
Balance at end of the period (5) (5}

Carrying amounti
at 31 December 2018 133 311 133 311
at 31 December 2019 128 114

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 6 081m US dollar goodwil! to assets held for sale — see Note
22 Assels classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

In 2019, AB InBev recognized goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 682m US dollar (2018: 107m US doliar} - see also Note 6 Acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries.

Effective 1 of January 2019 AB InBev adopted a new organizational structure resulting in a change in cash-generating units. Furthermore,
following the closing in 2019 of a new bottling agreement with the Coca-Cola Group in Honduras and El Salvador and changes in the operating
model of the soft drinks business acquired through the SAB combination, the company re-aliocated 3.0 Bio US doflar goodwill to the Rest of
Middle Americas CGU and reduced the amount of goodwill previously allocated to the South Africa and Rest of Africa CGUSs by 2.2 billion US
dollar and 0.8 hillion US dollar, respectively.

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadoilu Efes' existing Russia and Ukraine businesses. Following
this merger, the company derecognized its Russian and Ukrainian net assets including goodwill (see Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries).

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the different cash-generating units as follows:

Million US dollar

Cash-generating unit 2019 2018’
United States 33451 33 288
Rest of North America 1984 1891
Mexico 13175 12614
Colombia 18 647 18 796
Rest of Middle Americas 25 257 21 969
Brazil 4 539 4715
Rest of South America 1101 1139
Europe 2277 2222
South Africa 13 500 15810
Rest of Africa 8 691 7701
China 3095 2758
Rest of Asia Pacific? 4 397 10 308
Total carrying amount of goodwili 128 114 133 311

A significant portion of the goodwill was recorded in connection with the 2016 combination with SAB.

AB inBev completed its annual impairment test for goodwill and conciuded that, based on the assumplions described below, no impairment
charge was warranted.

The company cannot predict whether an event that triggers impairment will oceur, when it will occur or how it will affect the value of the asset
reported. Goodwill impairment testing relies on a number of critical judgments, estimates and assumptions. AB InBev believes that all of its

! The 2018 presentation has been restated following the change in cash-generaling units effective as of 1 January 2019.
2 The balance attributable to the Rest of Asia Pacific CGU as at 31 December 2018 includes the Australia operations’ goadwill reclassified to assets held for sale
as at 31 December 2019.
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estimates are reasonable. they are consistent with the company’s intemnal reperting and reflect management's best estimates. However,
inherent uncertainties exist that management may net be able to control. If the company's current assumptions and estimates, inciuding
projected revenues growth rates, competitive and consumer trends, weighted average cost of capital, terminal growth rates, and other market
factors, are not met, or if valuation factors outside of the company’s control change unfavorably, the estimated fair value of goodwill could be
adversely affected, leading to a potential impairment in the future.

During its valuation, the company ran sensitivity analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal
growth rate, in particular for the valuations of Colombia, Rest of Middle Americas and South Africa cash-generating units that show the highest
invested capital to EBITDA multiple. While a change in the estimates used could have a malerial impact on the calculation of the fair values
and trigger an impairment charge, the company, based on the sensitivity analysis performed is not aware of any reasonably possible change
in a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit’s camying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Goodwill, which accounted for approximately 54% of AB inBev total assets as at 31 December 2019, is tested for impairment at the cash-
generating unit ievel (that is one level below the operating segments). The cash-generating unit levet is the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Except in cases where the initial allocation of goodwill has not been concluded by the end of
the initial reporting period foliowing the business combination, goodwill is allocated as from the acquisition date to each of AB InBev's cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination whenever a business combination occurs.

AB InBev's impairment testing methodology is in accordance with IAS 36, in which fair-value-iess-costto-sell and value in use approaches
are taken into consideration. This consists in applying a discounted free cash flow approach based on acquisition valuation meodels for the
cash-generating units showing an invested capital to EBITDA multiple above 9x and valuation multiples for the other cash-generating units.

The key judgments, estimates and assumpticns used in the discounted free cash flow calculations are generally as follows:

* In the first three years of the model, free cash flows are based on AB inBev's strategic plan as approved by key management. AB
InBev’s strategic plan is prepared per cash-generating unit and is based on external sources in respect of macro-economic assumptions,
industry, inflation and foreign exchange rates, past experience and identified initiatives in terms of market share, revenue, variable and
fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital assumptions;

* [orthe subsequent seven years of the model, data from the strategic plan is extrapolated generally using simplified assumptions such
as macro-economic and industry assumptions, variable cost per hectoliter and fixed cost linked to inflation, as obtained from external
SOUrces;

® Cash flows after the first ten-year period are extrapolated generally using expected annual long-term GDP growth rates, based on
external sources, in order to calculate the terminal value, considering sensitivities on this metric;

®* Projections are discounted at the unit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), considering sensitivities on this metric;
* Costto sell is assumed to reach 2% of the entity value based on historical precedents.
For the main cash generating units, the terminal growth rate applied generally ranged between 3% and 5%.

For the cash generating units subject to a discounted free cash flow approach, the WACC applied in US dollar nominal terms were as follows:

Cash-generating unit 2019 2018
Colombia 6% 7%
Rest of Middle Americas 9%, 9%,
South Africa T% 8%
Rest of Africa 10% 1%

In the sensitivity analysis performed by management, an adverse change of 1% in WACC would not cause a cash-generating unit's carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The above calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly-traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators (i.e. recent market transactions from peers).
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15. Intangible assets

31 December
31 December 201 2018

Commercial
Million US dollar Brands intangibles Software Other

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 42133 2 943 2692 691 48 465 48 871
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (13) (24} {29) {3 (79) {1 765)
Acquisitions through business combinations a8 - 5 & 99 24
Acquisitions and expenditures - 290 113 228 631 668
Disposals - (120) (136) 3) (258) (96)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries (29) - - - (29) (47)
z::;‘ffr:;f:r)r’g‘:g‘;’t“e' asset categories and (2 105) (311 (51) (253) (2720) 810
Balance at end of period 40 074 2774 2594 666 46 108 48 465
Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (32) {1 479) {2 002) (121) {3 634) (2 997)
Effect of movermnents in foreign exchange - 24 16 1 41 164
Amortization - (239) (322) 61} 622} (445)
Disposals - 117 135 2 254 14
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - - - - - 30
Transfer tol(from)1other asset categories and ~ (18) 322 1 305 (400)
other movements

Balance at end of period (32) (1 595) (1851) (178) {3 656) (3 634)
Carrying value

at 31 December 2018 42 101 1470 690 570 44 831 44 831
at 31 December 2019 4D 042 1179 743 438 42 452

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 2 727m US doliar intangible assets to assets held for sale —
see Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operalions.

During 2019, AB InBev recognized intangible assets on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 128m US dollar (2018: 24m US dollar) out of which
29m US dollar relates to acquisitions in Australia subsequently tranferred to assets held for sale — see aiso Note B Acquisitions and disposais
of subsidiaries.

On 2 May 2018, AB InBev recovered the Budweiser distribution rights in Argentina from CCU. The transaction involved the transfer of the
Isenbeck, lguana, Diosa, Norte and Baltica brands, along with a cash payment of 306m US dollar and other commitments, to CCU Argentina.
The Budweiser distribution rights have been assigned an indefinite usefu! life.

AB InBev is the owner of some of the world’s most valuable brands in the beer industry. As a result, brands and certain distribution rights are
expected to generate positive cash flows for as long as the company owns the brands and distribution rights. Given AB InBev's more than
600-year history, brands and certain distribution rights have been assigned indefinite lives.

Acquisitions and expenditures of commercial intangibles mainly represent supply and distribution rights, exclusive multi-year sponsorship
rights and other commercial intangibies.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are comprised primarily of brands and certain distribution rights that AB InBev purchases for its
own products, and are tested for impairment during the fourth quarter of the year or whenever a triggering event has occurred,

As 2t 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the intangible assets amounted to 42 452m US dollar {31 December 2018: 44 $31m US
dollar) of which 40 181m US dollar was assigned an indefinite useful life (31 December 2018: 42 435m US dollar) and 2 271m US dollar a
finite life (31 December 2018: 2 386m US dollar).

1 as requited by IFRS 5, the intangible assels balances of the Australia cperations were reclassified 1o assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 without
restaternent of the 2018 balances.

2 The transfer {to)/from other asset categories and other mavements mainiy relates to transfars from assets under construction to their respective asset categories,
to contributions of assets ta pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of intangible assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS § Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and to the restatement of non-monetary assets under hyperinfiation accounting in line with 1AS 29
Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies, Accordingly, the 2019 transfers include the balances of Australian operations reclassified 1o assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2015.
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The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives was allocated to the cash-generating units as follows:
Million US dollar

Count 2019 2018
United States 22124 22 037
Rest of North America 66 63
Mexico 3243 3 068
Colombia 3488 3516
Rest of Middle Americas 3915 3915
Brazil 3 1
Rest of South America 714 741
Europe 489 535
South Africa 3417 3338
Rest of Africa 1228 1261
China 410 381
Rest of Asia Pacific 1120 3579
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 40 217 42 435

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been tested for impairment using the same methodology and assumptions as disclosed in
Note 14 Goodwill. Based con the assumptions described in that note, AB InBev concluded that no impairment charge is warranted. While a
change in the estimates used could have a material impact on the calculation of the fair values and trigger an impairment charge, the company
is not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit's carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.

16. Investments in associates

A reconciliation of the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the company’s interests in matenal associates is as follows:

2019 2018
Million US dollar AB InBev Efes Castel Efes AB InBev Efes Castel Efes
Balance at 1 January 1159 3279 479 - 3 480 694
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (56) (59} - (213) {194)
Acquisitions - - - 1157 - -
Dividends received (15) (95) (1) - (98) “n
Share of results of associates (1 111 42 2 110 (10)
Balance at end of period 1133 3239 451 1159 3279 479

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadoiu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukraine businesses. Following
the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB inBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are now combined under AB InBev Efes.
The combined business is fully consolidated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts. As a result of the transaction, AB InBev stopped
consolidating #s Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method as of that date.
See also Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries.

In 2048, the share of results of associates reported for Castel was negatively impacted by a currency devaluation in Angola.

Summarized financial information of the company’s material associates is as follows:

2019 2018
Million US doltar AB InBev Efes  Castel Efes AB InBev Efes Castel Efes
Current assets 377 4 044 2 266 275 4193 2 888
Non-current assets 767 4 255 5618 664 4 291 6 463
Current liabilities 652 1631 1859 556 1643 2233
Non-current liabilities 109 743 1986 - 635 2207
Non-controlling interests - 723 1909 - 939 2297
Net assets 383 5 201 2130 383 5 267 2614
Revenue 1388 5107 4015 1081 5 786 3818
Profit (loss} 23 719 276 4 921 (43)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - (372) (431} - (254) 1536
Total comprehensive income (loss) 23 347 (155) 4 667 1493

In 2019, associates that are not individually material contributed 10m US dollar fo the results of investment in associates (2018: 51m US
dollar).
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Following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation economy in 2018, the company recorded an impairment of 188m US dollar on its
investment in Delta Corporation Ltd. The impairment is recorded as a non-recurring net finance cost. Refer to Note 11 Finance cost and
income.

Additional information related to the significant associates is presented in Note 36 AB InBev Companies.

17. Investment securities

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Investment in unguoted companies 86 84
Investment on debt securities 25 24
Non-current investments 111 108
Investmant on debt securities a1 87
Current investments 91 &7

As of 31 December 20189, current debt securities of 91m US dollar mainly represented investments in government bonds (31 December 2018:
87m US dollar). The company's investments in such short-term debt securities are primarily to facilitats liuidity and for capital preservation.

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of temporary difference can be detailed as follows:

2019
Million US dollar Assels Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 415 {2 550) (2 135}
intangible assets 112 {10 327) (10 215)
Inventories 119 (67) 52
Trade and other receivables 52 (1) 51
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 706 (603) 103
Employee benefits 631 (3) 628
Provisions 467 (22) 445
Derivatives 23 (21) 2
Other items 311 (861) (550)
Loss carry forwards 515 - 515
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3350 {14 455) {11 105)
Netting by taxable entity {1631} 1631 -
Net deferred tax assetsi(liabilities) 1719 {12824) {11 105)

2018 restated

Million US dollar Assets Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment 381 (2 665) (2 284)
Intangible assets 115 (10 665) (10 550)
Inventories 101 (&7} 34
Trade and other receivables 142 (62} 80
Interest-bearing ioans and borrowings 535 (618) (83)
Employee benefits 673 (5) 668
Provisions 483 (27) 456
Derivatives 33 (58) (25}
Other items 215 (736} (521)
Loss carry forwards 577 - 577
Gross deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 3 255 {14 903) {11 648)
Netting by taxable entity (1738) 1738 -
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1517 (13 165) (11 648)
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The change in net deferred taxes recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position can be detailed as follows:

2018
Million US doflar 2019 restated
Balance at 1 January {11 648) (11 857)
Recognized in profit or loss 19 a5
Recognized in other comprehensive income 109 (130}
Acquisitions through business combinations (18} (23)
Reclassified as held for sale 363 -
Other movements and effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 70 267
Balance at 31 December {11 105) (11 648)

Most of the temporary differences are refated 1o the fair value adjustment on intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and property, plant
and equipment acquired through business combinations. The realization of such temporary differences is unlikely to revert within 12 months.

Tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences on which no defemed tax asset is recognized amount to 4 734m US dollar
(2018: 5 280m US dollar). 728m US dollar of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences do not have an expiration date, 22m US
dollar, 737m US dollar and 218m US dollar expire within respectively 1, 2 and 3 years, while 3 029m US dollar have an expiration date of
more than 3 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized on these items because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which these tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilized and the company has nc tax planning strategy
currently in place to utilize these tax losses and deductible temporary differences.

19. Inventories

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Prepayments 105 123
Raw materials and consumables 2478 2 387
Work in progress 405 363
Finished goods 1257 1215
Goods purchased for resale 182 146
Inventories 4 427 4234

Inventories other than work in progress
Inventories stated at net realizable value 174 59

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense in 2019 amounts to 20 362m US dollar, included in cost of sales (2018: 19 833m US doilar).

Impairment losses on inventories recognized in 2019 amount to 59m US dollar {2018: 72m US dollar).
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20. Trade and other receivables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cash deposits for guarantees 219 197
Loans to customers 58 45
Deferred collection on disposals - 53
Tax receivable, other than income tax 166 139
Trade and other receivables 363 335

807 768

For the nature of cash deposits for guarantees see Note 31 Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, loans to customers and other.

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Trade receivables and accrued income 4 046 4412
Interest receivable 21 19
Tax receivabie, other than income tax 821 378
Loans to customers 119 143
Prepaid expenses 563 329
Other receivables 516 1094

6187 6375

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is a good approximation of their fair value as the impact of discaunting is not significant.

The ageing of the current trade receivables and accrued income, interest receivable, other receivables and current and non-current loans to
customers can be detaited as follows for 2019 and 2018 respectively:

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due
impaired nor
Net carrying  past due on
amount as of the Between Between
31 December reporting Less than 30 and 59 60 and 89 More than
2019 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4 046 3690 261 44 44 7
Loans to customers 177 172 1 2 2 -
Interest receivable 21 21 - -
Other receivables 616 582 9 16 5
4 860 4 465 271 62 51 1

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due
impaired nor

Net carrying past due on

amount as of the Between Between
31 December reporting Less than 30 and 59 60 and 39 More than
2018 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4412 4 092 239 52 20 9
Loans to customers 188 176 4 5 3 -
Interest receivable 19 19 - - - -
Other receivables 1094 1 051 13 26 4
5713 5338 256 83 27 9

The above analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the reporting date but not impaired also includes non-current loans
to customers. Past due amounts were not impaired when collection is stil considered likeiy, for instance because the amounis can be
recovered from the tax authorities or AB inBev has sufficient collateral. Impairment losses on trade and other receivables recognized in 2019
amount 1o 51rn US dollar (2018: 43m US dollar).

AB InBev's exposure to credit, cumency and interest rate risks is disclosed in Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.
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21. Cash and cash equivalents

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Short-term bank deposits 2236 2233
Cash and bank accounts 5 002 4 841
Cash and cash equivalents 7 238 7074
Bank overdrafts {68} (114)

7169 6 960

The cash cutstanding as at 31 December 2019 includes restricted cash for an amount of 78m US dollar (31 December 2018: 2m US dollar).
This restricted cash relates to an cutstanding consideration payable to former Anheuser-Busch shareholders that have not yet claimed the
proceeds from the 2008 combination (2m US dellar) and amounts depeosited on a blocked account in respect to the state aid investigation into
the Belgian excess profit ruling system (76m US dollar) — see atso Note 32 Contingencies.

22. Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Balance at the end of previous year 39 133
Reclassified to assets held for sale in the period 9692 35
Disposals (59) (128)
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange 341 1
Balance at the end of year 10 013 39

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Balance at the end of previous year - -

Reclassified to liabilities associated with assets held for sale 1106 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 39
Balance at the end of year 1145 -

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced the agreement to divest CUB, its Austratian subsidiary, to Asahi for 16.0 billion AUD (14 .2 billion' US
dollar before any price adjustments) on a cash free, debt free basis. Asahi has committed financing in place and the transaction is subject to
customary closing conditions, including but not limited to regulatory approvals in Australia. The transaction is expected to close by the first
quarter of 2020. The company will continue to manage these operations until the transaction completes.

Consequently, in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, assets and liabilities associated
with the Australian operations have been reclassified to assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale. Furthermore,
the results of the Australian operations are now accounted for as discontinued operations and presented in a separate line in the consolidated
income statement {"profit from discontinued operations”). As required by IFRS 5, the 2018 consclidated income statement and statement of
cash flows have been restated in these consclidated financial statements.

! Converted into US dollars at the December 2018 closing rate of 1.423803.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Assets and liabilities relating to the Australian operations have been classified as held for sale on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019. The relevant assets and liabilities are detailed in the table below:

Million US dollar 31 December 2019

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 625

Goodwill and intangible assets 9 030

Other assets 310

Assets classified as held for sale 9 9865

Liabilities

Trade and other payabies 659
380

Deferred tax liabilities
Cther liabilities 106
Liabilities associated with assets heid for sale 1145

RESULTS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the results of the Australian operations included in the consolidated income statements and presented as
discontinued operations:

For the twelve-month period ended 31 December

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Revenue 1394 1577
Profit from operations 632 775

424 531

Profit from discentinued operations

The cumulative foreign exchange differences arsing from transtation of the consolidated net assets of Australian operations to the presentation
currency will be recycled upon the disposal of the subsidiary. The cumulative other comprehensive income / (loss} attributable to the Australian
operations amounted to (426)m WS dollar as of 31 December 2019.

CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Cash flows attributable to the operating, investing and financing activitics of the Australian operations are summarnzed as follows:

For the twelve-month period ended 3% December

Million IS dollar 2019 2018 restated
Cash flow from operating activities 840 883
Cash flow from investing activities 7 (109)
Cash flow from financing aclivities (24) (19)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 529 755
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23. Changes in equity and earnings per share

STATEMENT QF CAPITAL
The tables below summarize the changes in issued capital and treasury shares during 2019:

Issued capital

Issued capital Million shares Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 2019 1736
Changes during the period - -
2019 1736
Of which:
Ordinary shares 1693
Restricted shares 326

Result on the use of
treasury shares

Million
Treasury shares Mitlion shares US dollar Millionn US dollar
At the end of the previous year 62.5 (6 549) (2 383)
Changes during the period (2.7) 279 (173}
59.9 (6 270) (2 556)

As at 31 December 2019, the share capital of AB InBev amounts to 1 238 608 344.12 euro (1 736 million US dollar). It is represented by
2 019 241 973 shares without nominal value, of which 59 862 847 are held in treasury by AB InBev and its subsidiaries. All shares are ordinary
shares, except for 325 999 817 restricted shares. As at 31 December 2019, the total of authorized, un-issued capital amounts to 37m euro.

The treasury shares held by the company are reported in equity in Treasury shares.

The holders of ordinary and restricted shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the company. In respect of the company’s shares that are held by AB InBev, rights are suspended.

The restricted shares are unlisted, not admitted to trading on any stock exchange, and are subject to, among other things, restrictions on
transfer until converted into new ordinary shares. The restricted shares will be convertible at the election of the holder into new ordinary shares
on a one-for-one basis with effect from the fifth anniversary of completion of the SAB combination. From completion of the SAB combination,
such restricted shares will rank equally with the ordinary shares with respect to dividends and voting rights.

The shareholders’ structure is based on the notifications made to the company pursuant to the Belgian Law of 02 May 2007, which governs
the disclosure of significant shareholdings in listed companies. It is included in the Corporate Governance section of AB InBev's annual report.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

In compliance with IFRS 10, the acquisition or disposal of additional shares in a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction with
owners.

On 30 September 2019, the initial public offering (the “IPO") of a minority stake in Budweiser Brewing Company APAC Limited, AB InBev's
Asia Pacific subsidiary, was completed and Budweiser APAC commenced the listing of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. In
addition, on 3 October 2019, the over-allotment option in connection with the IPO of Budweiser APAC was fully exercised by the international
underwriters.

The final number of shares issued in the IPO was 1 669 459 000 shares comprising of 72 586 000 shares issued under the Hong Kong public
offering, 1 379 118 000 shares placed under the international offering, and 217 755 000 shares issued under the over-allotment option fully
exercised by the international underwriters.

Foliowing the completion of the IPQ and after the exercise of the over-alletment option, AB InBev retained an 87.22% controlling interest of
the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. As presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the transaction resulted in a
4.4 billion US dollar increase in equity and a 1.2 billion US dollar increase in non-controlling interest representing 12.78% of the net assets of
Budweiser APAC.

The net proceeds of the offering {after deducting the underwriting commissions and other expenses in connection with the IPO and the
issuance of the new shares) amount to 5.6 billion US dollar and were used to repay debt of AB InBev.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF OWN SHARES (REPORT ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 7:220 OF THE BELGIAN
COMPANIES CODE OF COMPANIES AND ASSOCIATIONS) AND BORROWINGS OF OWN SHARES- PURCHASE OF
OWN SHARES

During 2019, the company has not acquired any treasury shares in accordance with article 7:215 of the Belgian Code of Companies and
Associations (former article 620 of the Belgian Companies Code) and has proceeded with the following disposals of its own shares.

Treasury shares

The company has used 2 664 658 treasury shares to reimburse stock lending arrangements. As a result, as at 31 December 2019, the group
owned 59 B62 847 own shares of which 42 158 420 were held directly by AB InBev. The par valus of the share is 0.61 eurc. As a consequence,
the treasury shares used to reimburse stock lending amangements during 2019 represented 1 826 021 US dollar {1 625 441 euro) of the
subscribed capital and the shares that the company still owned at the end of 2019 represented 41 022 453 US dollar {36 516 337 euro) of the
subscribed capital.
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Borrowed shares

In order to fulfill AB InBev's commilments under various outstanding stock opticn plans, during the course of 2019, the company had stock
lending arrangements in place for up to 32 664 658 shares, of which 31 601 230 shares were used to fulfil stock option plan commitments
during 2019, As at 31 December 2018, given the repayment of 2 664 658 shares, the balance of borrowed shares still 1o be repaid amounted
to 30 million. On such date, an amount of 1 063 428 borrewed shares remained available for further use. The company shall pay any dividend
equivalent after tax in respect of such borrowed shares. This payment will be reported through equity as dividend.

DIVIDENDS

On 24 QOctober 2019, an interim dividend of (.80 euro per share or approximately 1 588m euro was approved by the Board of Directors. This
interim dividend was paid out on 21 November 20198. On 26 February 2020, in addition to the interim dividend paid on 21 November 2019, a
dividend of 1 euro per share or 1 988m euro was proposed by the Board of Directors, reflecting a totat dividend payment for the 2018 fiscal
year of 1.80 euro per share or 3 586m euro.

On 24 Qctober 2018, an interim dividend of 0.80 euro per share or approximately 1 565m euro was approved by the Board of Directors. This
interim dividend was paid out on 28 November 2018. On 24 April 2019, in addition to the interim dividend paid an 29 November 2018, a
dividend of 1.00 euro per share (or 1 978m euro} was approved at the shareholder’ meeting, reflecting a total dividend payment for the 2018
fiscal year of 1.80 euro per share (or 3 557m euro). The dividend was paid out on 9 May 2019.

TRANSLATION RESERVES

The translation reserves comprise all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The translation reserves also comprise the portion of the gain or loss on the foreign cumency liabilities and on the derivative
financial instruments determined to be effective net investment.

HEDGING RESERVES

The hedging reserves comprise the effective portion of the cumuiative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges to the extent that the
hedged risk has not yet impacted profit or loss

TRANSFERS FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amount of dividends payable to AB InBev by its operating subsidiaries is subject to, among other restrictions, general limitations imposed
by the corporate laws, capital transfer restrictions and exchange control restrictions of the respective jurisdictions where those subsidiaries
are organized and operate. Capital transfer restrictions are also commen in certain emerging market countries, and may affect A8 InBev’s
flaxibility in implementing a capital structure it believes to he efficient. As at 31 December 2019, the restrictions above menticned wera not
deemaed significant on the company’s ability to access or use the assets or settle the liabilities of its operating subsidiaries.

Dividends paid to AB InBev by certain of its subsidiaries are also subject fo withholding taxes. Withholding taxes, if applicable, generally do
not exceed 15%.

DEFERRED SHARE INSTRUMENT

In a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo, selected Grupo Modelo shareholders cormmitted, upon tender of their Grupo
Modelo shares, to acquire 23 076 922 AB InBev shares to be delivered within 5 years for a consideration of approximately 1.5 billion US dollar.
The consideration was paid on 5 June 2013.

On 21 May 2018, AB InBev delivered the shares that were due under the deferred share instruments through the use of AB InBev treasury
shares.

Until the delivery of the AB InBev shares, AB InBev paid a coupon on each undelivered AB InBev share, so that the Deferred Share Instrument
holders were compensated on an after-tax basis, for dividends they would have received had the AB InBev shares been delivered to them
prior to the record date for such dividend.

The deferred share instrument was classified as an equity instrument, in line with IAS 32, because the number of shares and consideration
received are fixed. The coupon to compensate for the dividend equivalent is reported through equity. On 3 May 2018, the company paid a
coupon of 2.00 eurc per share (approximately 56m US dollar).

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RESERVES
The changes in the other comprehensive income reserves are as follows:

Post-

Transiation Hedging employment Total OCI

Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves

As per 1 January 2019 {21 079) 494 {1 567) (22 152)
Other comprehensive income

xchange differences on translation of foreign

Eperatiogws (gains/{losses)) S 1143 . . 1143

Cash flow hedges - (97 - (97}

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - {173) {173)

Total comprehensive income 1143 {31 {173) 873

As per 31 December 2019 (19 936) 397 (1 740) (21 279)
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Post-
Translation Hedging employment Total QCI
Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves
As per 1 January 2018 {13 705) 586 (1 665) {14 784)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (gains/{losses)) (7 374) - - (7 374)
Cash flow hedges - {92) - (92)
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - 98 98
Total comprehensive income (7 374) (92) 98 (7 368)
As per 31 December 2018 {21 079) 494 {1 567) {22 152)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 is based on the profit attributable to the equity holders of
AB InBev of 9 171m US dollar (31 December 2018: 4 370m US dollar} and a weighted average number of ordinary anc restricted shares
outstanding (including deferred share instruments and stock lending) per end of the period, calculated as follows:

Million shares 2019 2018

Issued ordinary and restricted shares at 1 January, net of treasury shares 1957 1934
Effect of stock lending 25 18
Effect of undelivered shares under the deferred share instrument - 9
Effect of delivery of treasury shares 2 i4
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1984 1975

The caiculation of diluted eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 is based on the profit attributable to the equity holders of
AB InBev of 8 171m US dollar (31 December 2018: 4 370m US dollar} and the weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
{diluted) outstanding (including deferred share instruments and stock lending) at the end of the period, calculated as follows:

Million shares 2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1984 1975
Effect of share options, warrants and restricted stock units 42 36
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) at 31 December 2026 2011

The calculation of earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations is based on the profit from continuing cperations
attnbutable ta equity holders of AB InBev. A reconciliation of the profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, attributable to
equity holders of AB InBev to the profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev is calculated as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations,

attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8 086 6 248
Non-recurring items, before taxes (refer to Note 8) (323) (692)
Non-recurring finance income/(cost), before taxes (refer to Note 8) 882 (1982)
Non-recurring taxes (refer to Note B) (6) 233
Non-recurring non-controlling interest (refer to Note 8) 108 32
Profit from discontinued operations 424 531
Profit attributable to equity helders of AB InBev 9171 4 370
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The calculation of the Underlying EPS' is based on the profit before non-recurring items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market gains/losses
and hyperinflation impacts attributable to equity holders of AB InBev. A reconciliation of the profit before non-recurring items, discontinued
operations, mark-to-market gains/losses and hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev to the profit before non-recurring
items and discontinued operations, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev, is calculated as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit before non-recurring items, disconlinuec} operations, mark-to-market gains/losses 7196 8 089
and hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Mark-to-market (losses)/gains on certain derivatives related to the hedging 898 (1774)
of share-based payment programs (refer to Note 11)

Hyperinflation impacts {7) 77
Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, B 086 6 248

attributable to equity holders of AB [nBev

The table below sets out the EPS calculation:

Mitlion US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB inBev 9171 4 370
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 19284 1975
Basic EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 4.62 2.21
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8748 3839
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1 584 1975
Basic EPS from continuing operations 4.41 1.94
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, 8 086 6 248
attributable to aquity holders of AB inBev

Weighted average number of atdinary and restricted shares 1984 1975
Basic EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items 4.08 3.16
Prafit befare non-recurring items, discontinued aperations, mark-to-market gains/tosses and 7 196 8 099
hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1984 1975
Underlying EPS 3.63 4.10
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4 370
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2026 201
Diluted EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 4,53 217
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity hoiders of AB InBev 8 748 3839
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2026 2011
Diluted EPS from continuing operations 432 1.91
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurring items, 6086 6 248
attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2026 201
Diluted EPS from continuing operations befere non.recurring items 3.99 311

The average market value of the company's shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options and restricted stock units
was based on quoted market prices for the period that the options and restricted stock units were outstanding. 59m share options were anti-
dilutive and not included in the calculation of the dilutive effect as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: 63m share options).

' See glossary,
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24. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information about the company’s
exposure to interest rate and foreign exposure currency risk - refer to Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

Non-current liahilities 31 December 2018
Miflion US doHar 31 December 2019 restated
Secured bank loans 71 109
Unsecured bank loans 50 86
Unsecured bond issues 95 674 105170
Unsecured other loans 77 57
Lease liabilities 1692 1575
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 97 564 106 997

Current liabilities 31 December 2018

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Secured bank loans 790 370
Commercial papers 1599 1142
Unsecured bank loans 135 22
Unsecured bond issues 2532 2626
Unsecured cother loans 20 14
Lease liabilities 333 410
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5410 4 584

The current and non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings amount to 103.0 billion US dallar as of 31 December 2019, compared to
111.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018.

Commercial papers amount to 1.8 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019 and include programs in US doilar and euro with a total authorized
issuance up to 5.0 billion US dollar and 3.0 billion euro, respectively.

During 2019, Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. (ABIWW) and Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (ABISA) completed the issuance of the
following sernes of bonds: - .

Aggregate
Issuer principal amount
Issue date abbreviated Maturity date Currenc in millions Interest rate
23 Jan 2019 © ABIWW 23 Jan 2025 usD 2 500 4.150%
23 Jan 2019 ABIWW 23 Jan 2029 - .__USD 4 250 4.750%
23 Jan 2019 ABIWW 23 Jan 2031 Uso 750 4 .900%
23 Jan 2019 ABIWW ;23 Jan 2039 usp 2 000 5.450%
23 Jan 2019 ABIWW . 23.Jan 2049 - - Ush 4 000 5.650%
23 Jan 2019 ABIWW © 23 Jan 2059 v USh 2000 5.800%
29 Mar 2019 . ABISA - . 1Jul2027. .- EUR 1250 1.125%
29 Mar 2019 ABISA ' 28 Mar 2031 EUR 1000 1.650%

On 11 February 2019, the company completed the tender offers of tweive series of notes issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance Inc.
(ABIFI), Anheuser-Busch Companies LLC (ABC} and Anheuser-Busch InBev Wordwide Inc. (ABIWW) and repurchased 16.3 billion US dollar
aggregate principal ameunt of these notes. The total principal amount accepted in the tender offers is set out in the table below.

Original principal Principal amount

Date of Issuer Title of series of notes amount cutstanding redeemed

redemption abbreviated issued exchang in million US dollar] in million U3 dollar
11 Feb 2019 __-ABIFI ) 2.650% Notes due 2021 uso - 4968 2519
11 Feb 2019 L ABIFL - Floating Rate Notes due 2021 uso 500 189
11 Feb 2019 ABWW_ 4.375% Notes due 2021 usb _ 500 . 215
11 Feb 2019 __ABIWW 3.750% Notes due 2022 UsD - 2.350. 1101
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 usD . 3000 1296
11 Feb 2019 L ABIEL 2.625% Notes due 2023 uso 1250 - 607
11 Feb 2019 __ABIFI 3.300% Notes due 2023 usb - 6000 . 2 886
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW Floating Rate Notes due 2024 UsD 500 271
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 3.500% Notes due 2024 usbD . 1500 846
11 Feb 2019 ABIFI - 3.700% Notes due 2024 uso _ 1400 535
11 Feb 2019 ABIFl - 3.650% Notes due 2026 uso 2445 812

11 Feb 2019 . ABC . 3.650% Notes due 2026 UsD 8555 5064
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Furthermore, in 2019, the company redesemed the outstanding principal amounts indicated in the table below of the following series of notes
issued by Anheuser-Busch inBev NV/SA {ABISA), Anheuser-Busch inBev Finance Inc. {(ABIFY) and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide tnc.
(ABIWW):

Aggregate principal Principal
Date of Issuer Title of series of notes issued amount outstanding amount redeemed
redemption abhreviated exchanged i il in millions
25 Apr 2018 ABISA 2.25% Notes due 2020 EUR 750 750
25 Apr 2019 ABIWW 3.750% Notes due 2022 usD 1249 1249
25 Apr 2019 ABIF! 3.300% Notes due 2023 usD 3114 315
29 Qct 2019 ABISA 0.625% Notes due 2020 EUR 1750 1750
29 Oct 2019 ABIFI 2.650% Notes due 2021 UsD 2448 2449
29 Oct 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 usn 1704 525
12 Nov 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 usD 117¢ 725

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2019 1 year More than
Million US dollar Total or less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Secured bank loans 861 790 14 14 16 27
Commercial papers 1589 1599 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 185 135 50 - - -
Unsecured bond issues 98 206 2532 2506 2760 11435 78973
Unsecured ather loans 98 21 13 8 4 52
Lease liabilities 2025 333 290 198 225 979

102 974 5410 2873 2980 11 680 80 031

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2018 1 year or More than
Mitlion US dollar (restated Total less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Secured bank loans 479 370 38 14 26 31
Commercial papers 1142 1142 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 108 22 - 86 - -
Unsecured bond issues 107 796 2626 5259 8039 17 180 74 6§92
Unsecured other [oans 71 14 18 7 9 23
Lease liabilities 1985 410 312 255 357 650

111 581 4 584 5627 8 401 17 572 75 396

2018 2018 2018

Lease liabilities 2019 2019 2019 Payments Interests Principal
Million US dollar Payments Interests Principal restated restated restated
Less than one year 404 71 333 508 98 410
Between one and two years 350 60 280 391 79 312
Between two and three years 243 45 198 325 70 255
Between three and five years 285 60 225 467 110 357
More than 5 years 1056 77 979 900 250 650
2338 313 2025 2591 606 1985

Net debt is defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt securities and cash and
cash equivalents. Net debt is a financial performance indicator that is used by AB InBev's management to highlight changes in the company’s
overall liquidity position. The company believes that net debt is meaningful for investors because it is one of the primary measures that AB
InBev's management uses when evaluating its progress towards deleveraging.

AB InBev's net debt decreased to 95.5 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019, from 104.2 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018 after
restatement for adoption of IFRS 16 on lease accounting and inclusion of the lease liability. Aside from operating results that are net of capital
expenditures, the net debt is impacted mainly by the payment of interests and taxes (7.1 biilion LS dollar), the settlement of derivatives (0.8
billion US dollar increase of net debt), dividend payments to AB InBev's sharehoiders (5.0 billion US dollar), foreign exchange impact on debt
(0.4 billion US dollar) and the proceeds of the IPO of AB InBev's Asia Pacific subsidiary (5.6 billion US dollar proceeds net of expenses).
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The following table provides a reconciliation of AB InBev's net debt as at 31 December:
31 December 2018

Mitlion US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 97 564 106 997
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5410 4 584
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 102974 111 581
Bank overdrafts 68 114
Cash and cash equivalents {7 238) (7 074)
Interest bearing loans granted and other deposits

{included within Trade and cther receivables) (146} (268)
Debt securities (included within Investment securities) (117} (111}
Net debt 95 542 104 242

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the company's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the company’s
consclidated cash flow statement from financing activities.

Short-term debt and

g-term debt, net current portion of long-

Million US dollar of current portion term debt
Balance at 1 January 2019 106 997 4584
Proceeds from borrowings 17 939 4 645
Payments on borrowings (22 339) (8 253)
Capitalization / {payment) of lease liabilities 420 (441}
Amortized cost 75 13
Unrealized foreign exchange effects (538} (39)
Current portion of long-term debt (4 769) 4768
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (69} (15)
Other movements (152} 147
Balance at 31 December 2019 97 564 5410

Short-term debt and

Long<erm debt, net current portion of long-

Million US dollar (restated of current portion term debt
Balance at 1 January 2018 110 637 7 846
Proceeds from borrowings 15111 2672
Payments on borrowings (13 925) (8 564)
Capitalization / (payment) of lease liabilities 215 (423}
Amortized cost 47 17
Unrealized foreign exchange effects (1 951) (316)
Current portion of long-term debt (3114) 3114
Other movements (22) 238
Balance at 31 December 2018 106 997 4 584
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25. Employee benefits

AB InBev sponsors various post-employment benefit plans worldwide. These include pension plans, both defined contribution plans, and
defined benefit plans, and other post-employment benefits. In accordance with IAS 19 Empioyee Benefits post-employment benefit plans are
classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

For defined contribution plans, AB InBev pays ¢ontributions to publicly or privately administered pension funds or insurance contracts. Once
the contributions have been paid, the group has no further payment obligation. The regular contributions constitute an expense for the year in
which they are due. For 2019, contributions paid into defined contribution plans for the company amounted to 101m US dollar compared to
109m US dollar for 2018,

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

During 2019, the company contributed to 82 defined benefit plans, of which 61 are retirement or leaving service plans, 17 are medical cost
plans and 4 other long-term employee benefit plans. Most plans provide retirement and leaving service benefits related to pay and years of
service. [n many of the countries the plans are partially funded. When plans are funded, the assets are held in legally separate funds set up
in accordance with applicable fegal requirements and common practice in each country. The medical cost plans in Brazil, Canada, Colombia,
South Africa and US provide medical benefits to employees and their families after retirement. Many of the defined benefit plans are closed
to new entrants.

The present value of funded obligations includes a 161m US dollar liability related to two medical plans in Brazil, for which the benefits are
provided through the Fundagdo Antecnic Helena Zemenner {"FAHZ™). The FAHZ is a legally distinct entity which provides medical, dental,
educational and social assistance to current and retired employees of Ambev. On 31 December 2019, the actuarial liabilities refated to the
benefits provided by the FAHZ are fully offset by an eguivalent amount of assets existing in the fund. The net liability recognized in the balance
sheet is nil.

The employee benefit net liability amounts to 2 834m US dollar as of 31 December 2019 compared to 2 665m US dollar as of 31 December
2018. In 20189, the fair value of the plan assets increased by 383m US dollar and the defined benefit obligations increased by 575m US dollar.
The increase in the employee benefit net liability is mainly driven by decreases in discount rates and unfavorabie foreign exchange
movements.

The company’s net liability for post-employment and iong-term employee benefit plans comprises the following at 31 December:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Present value of funded obligations {7 333) (6 762)
Fair value of plan assets 5442 5059
Present value of net obligations for funded plans (1 891) (1703)
Present vaive of unfunded obligations {810) (BOB)
Present value of net obligations (2 701) (2 509)
Unrecognized asset (74) (77)
Net liability (2 775) {2 586)
Other long-term employee benefits (59} (79)
Total employee benefits {2 834) {2 665)

Employee benefits amounts in the balance sheet:

Liakilities (2 848} (2 681)
Assets 14 16
Net liability (2 834) {2 665)

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as foltows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Defined benefit obfigation at 1 January (7 568) (8 410)
Current service costs (67) (72}
Interest cost (326} {322)
Past service gain/{cost) (9 (3)
Settlements 108 45
Benefits paid 596 493
Contribution by plan participants {2) (3)
Actuarial gains/(losses) — demographic assumptions 61 27
Actuarial gains/(losses) — financial assumptions (912) 350
Experience adjustments 29 14
Exchange differences (86) 313
Transfers and other movements 32 -
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December (8 143) {7 568)
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As at the last valuation date, the present value of the defined benefit obligation was comprised of approximately 1.7 billion US dollar relating
to active employees, 1.7 billion US dollar relating to deferred members and 4.8 billion US dollar relating to members in retirement.

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 5 059 5623
Interest income 218 225
Administration costs (23) (14)
Return on plan assets exceeding interest income 579 (333)
Contributions by AB InBev 294 307
Contributions by plan participants 2 3
Benefits paid net of administration costs {596} (493)
Assets distributed on settlements {(107) (45)
Exchange differences 46 (214)
Transfers and other movements (30) -
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 5442 5 059

Actual return on plans assets amounted to a gain of 797m US dollar in 2019 compared to a loss of 108m US dollar in 2018.

The changes in the unrecognized asset are as follows:

Million US doliar 2019 2018
Irrecoverable surplus impact at 1 January (77} (111)
Interest expense (7 (10}
Changes excluding amounts included in interest expense 9 44
lrrecoverable surplus impact at 31 December (74) {77)
The expense recognized in the income statement with regard to defined benefit plans can be detailed as follows:
Million US dollar 2019 2018
Current service costs (67} (72)
Administration costs (23} (14)
Past service cost due to plan amendments and curtailments 56 {3)
{Losses)/gains due to experience and demographic assumption changes 1 3
Profit from operations (23) (86)
Net finance cost (114) (197)
Total employee benefit expense {137) (193}

The employee benefit expense is included in the following line items of the income statement:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cost of sales (17 (26)
Distribution expenses (5) (11
Sales and marketing expenses (4) (16)
Administrative expenses 3 (28)
Other operating (expense)income - (6)
Non-recurring items - 1
Net finance cost {114) {107)

{137) (193}
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Weighted average assumptions used in computing the benefit obligations of the company's significant plans at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

2019
United
States Canada Mexico Brazil AB inBev
Discount rate 3.3% 31% 7.5% 7.2% 2.0% 3.3%
Price inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 3.8% 3.1% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 4.3% 7.4%-54% - 3.8%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 3.8% 2.9% 2.7%
Medical cost trend rate 6.5%-4.5% 4.5% - 7.4% - 6.6%-6.1%
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 85 year old female 87 89 85 88 89 87
United
States Mexico Brazil AB InBev
Discount rate 4.3% 3.9% 9.0% 8.8% 28% 4.3%
Price inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.4% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 43% 76%-56% - 38%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.0% 2.8%
Medical cost trend rate 6.5%-4.5% 4.5% - 7.6% - 6.8%-6.0%
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old female 87 89 85 88 89 87

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most
significant are detailed below:

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

In case of funded plans, the company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework
that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the abligations under the pension schemes. Within this
framework, the company’s ALM objective is to match assets to the pension obligations by investing in long-temm fixed interest securities with
maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the approapriate currency. The company actively monitors how the duration
and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the pension obligation.

ASSET VOLATILITY

In general, the company’s funded plans are invested in a combination of equities and bonds, generating high but volatile returns from equities
and at the same time stable and liability-matching returns from bonds. As the plans mature, the company usually reduces the level of
investment risk by investing more in assets that better match the liabilities. Since 2015, the company started the imptementation of a pension
de-risking strategy to reduce the risk profile of certain plans by reducing gradually the current exposure to equities and shifting those assets
to fixed income securities.

CHANGES IN BOND YIELDS

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’
bond hofdings.

INFLATION RISK

Some of the company's pension obligations, mainly in the UK, are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities. The
majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by or loosely correiated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation could potentially
increase the company's net benefit obligation.

LIFE EXPECTANCY

The majority of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase
in the plans’ liabilities.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation is 13.8 years (2018: 13.3 years).

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation tc changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Million US dollar 2019
Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate 0.5% (523) 565
Price inflation 0.5% 171 (182)
Future salary increase 0.5% 32 (30)
Medical cost trend rate 1.0% 45 (39)
Longevity One year 251 (252)
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The above are purely hypothetical changes in individual assumptions holding all other assumptions constant: economic conditions and
changes therein will often affect multiple assumptions at the same time and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not linear.

Sensitivities are reasonably possible changes in assumptions and they are calculated using the same approach as was used to determine
the defined benefit obligation. Therefore, the above infermation is not necessarily a reascnable representation of future results.

The fair value of plan assets at 31 December consists of the following:

2019 2018

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

Govemnment bonds 33% - 33% 32% - 2%
Corporate bonds 35% - 35% 36% - 36%
Equity instruments 23% - 23% 22% - 22%
Property - 4% 4% - 4% 4%
Insurance contracts and others 4% 1% 5% 4% 2% 6%
95% 5% 100% 94% 6% 100%

AB InBev expects to contribute approximately 325m US dollar for its funded defined benefit plans and 81m US dollar in benefit payments to
its unfundec defined benefit plans and post-retirement medical plans in 2020.

26. Share-based payments’

Different share and share option programs allow the company’s senior management and members of the board of directors to receive or
acquire shares of AB InBev or Ambev. AB InBev has three primary share-based compensation plans, the share-based compensation plan
{"Share-Based Compensation Plan"), the long-term restricted stock unit plan for directors {“Restricted Stock Units Plan for Directors), and the
long-term incentive stock-option plan for executives (“LTH Stock Option Plan Executives”). For all option plans, the fair value of share-based
payment compensation is estimated at the grant date, using a binomial Hull model, which has been modified to reflect the IFRS 2 share-based
payment requirement that assumptions about forfeiture before the end of the vesting period cannot impact the fair value of the option. All of
the company’s share-based payment plans are equity-settied.

Share-based payment transactions resulted in a total expense of 340m US dollar for the year 2019, as compared to 353m US dollar for the
yeaar 2018.

AB INBEV SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Share-Based Compensation Plan

As from 1 January 2010, the structure of the Share-Based Compensation Plan for certain executives in the general headquarters, has been
modified. From 1 January 2011, the new plan structure applies to all other senicr management. Under this plan, members of the Executive
Committee and other senior employees receive their bonus in cash but have the choice to invest some or all of the value of their bonus in AB
InBev shares with a five-year vesting period, referred to as bonus shares. Such voluntary investment leads to a 10% discount to the market
price of the shares. The company also matches such voluntary investment by granting three matching shares for each bonus share voluntarily
invested in, up to a limited total percentage of each participant's bonus. The percentage of the variable compensation that is entitled to get
matching shares vanes depending on the position of the executive. The matching is based on the gross amount of the variable compensation
invested. The discount shares and matching shares are granted in the form of restricted stock units which have a five-year vesting period.
Additicnally, the holders of the restricted stock units may be entitled to receive from AB InBev additional restricted stock units equal to the
dividends declared since the restricted stock unils were granied.

During 2019, AB InBev issued 1.6m of matching restricted stock units in relation to bonus granted to company employees and management
(2018: 1.5m of matching restricted stock units). These matching restricted stock units are valued at the share price at the grant date, and
representing a fair value of approximately 153m US dollar and cliff vest after five years (2018: 158m US dollar).

Restricted Stock Units Plan for Directors

Since the annual shareholder meeting of 24 April 2019, the share-based pertion of the remuneration of the directors of the company has been
granted in the form of restricted stock units and will no longer be granted in the form of 